
UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

www.ca-cib.com

Financial review
at 30 June 2011





Only the French version of the update of the shelf-registration document has been 
submitted to the Autorité des Marchés Financiers. It is therefore the only version that 
is binding in law. The original French version of this update of the shelf-registration 
document was fi led at the AMF on August 30th, 2011 under number D.10-0170 in 
accordance with article 212-13 of the AMF’s Internal regulations. It may be used in 
support of a fi nancial transaction if accompanied by a transaction circular approved 
by the AMF. This document was produced by the issuer and is binding upon its 
signatories.

UPDATE OF 2010
SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
AT 30 JUNE 2011



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AT 30 JUNE 20111

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2 2



RAPPORT D’ACTIVITÉ AU 1ER SEMESTRE 2011 1

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT  3

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS FIRST HALF 2011 ................................  5

CRÉDIT AGRICOLE CIB BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL RESULTS ....................................  7

RISK MANAGEMENT .............................................................................................................  15

OUTLOOK FOR THE SECOND HALF 2011 ..............................................................................  31

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     
AS OF JUNE 30TH, 2011 ..............................................................  33

GENERAL BACKGROUND ......................................................................................................  34

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................................................................  35

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..............................................................................  42

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONDENSED INTERIM                                                   
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................................................................  73

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ........................................................  75

GENERAL INFORMATION .............................................................  77

PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE UPDATE OF THE SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT                  
AND FOR AUDITING THE ACCOUNTS  ....................................................................................  78

CROSS-REFERENCE TABLE .........................................................  80

CONTENTS



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AT 30 JUNE 20111

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 4 4



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AT 30 JUNE 2011 1

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT  5

RAPPORT D’ACTIVITÉ AU 1ER SEMESTRE 2011 1

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
AT 30 JUNE 2011

CRÉDIT AGRICOLE CIB BUSINESS REVIEW AND                 
FINANCIAL RESULTS ................................................... 7

ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL ENVIRONMENT ...................................................  7

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS .............................................................................  8

RESULTS BY BUSINESS LINE .........................................................................  9

FINANCIAL STRUCTURE ................................................................................  13

RISK MANAGEMENT .................................................... 15

CREDIT RISKS ...............................................................................................  15

MARKET RISKS .............................................................................................  17

SPECIFIC RISKS (FINANCIAL STABILITY BOARD FORMAT) ..............................  20

MANAGEMENT OF STRUCTURAL FINANCIAL RISKS .......................................  24

OPERATIONAL RISKS .....................................................................................  29

LEGAL RISKS ................................................................................................  30

NON-COMPLIANCE RISKS .............................................................................  30

OUTLOOK FOR THE SECOND HALF 2011 ..................... 31



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AT 30 JUNE 20111

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 6



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AT 30 JUNE 2011 1

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT  7 7

   CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB BUSINESS 
REVIEW AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

   ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL ENVIRONMENT

The United States implemented budgetary and monetary mea-
sures to stimulate economic activity, quickly dissipating fears – 
which were widespread in summer 2010 - of the global economy 
sliding back into recession. The rise in US long-term interest 
rates, with the 10-year rate stabilising at around 3.4% at the start 
of the year, refl ects this restored confi dence about the short-term 
growth outlook.

The US economy nevertheless struggled to uphold its growth 
promises, with GDP growth of just 0.4% on an annualised basis 
in the fi rst quarter. However, this sluggish performance did not 
give rise to renewed uncertainty due to the apparently favourable 
breakdown of growth, with consumer spending holding up well 
and continuing brisk investment. 

Europe – which has opted for the path of austerity in order to get 
public debt back on a sustainable trajectory – was surprisingly re-
silient, with acceleration in growth at the start of the year to 3.4% 
on an annualised basis. However, mixed performances within the 
eurozone – with a buoyant performance in central nations and 
peripheral countries burdened by debt – failed to dissipate doubts 
about Europe’s ability to bring the sovereign debt crisis to an end. 

During the fi rst half of the year, the global economy also had to 
deal with a series of shocks with uncertain repercussions. The 
Arab world experienced sudden uprisings that began in Tunisia, 
before spreading to the region as a whole. In Tunisia and Egypt, 
the fi ght for democracy brought down authoritarian regimes, 
while elsewhere protests were quashed in repression. In Libya, 
insurrection degenerated into a civil war between forces loyal to 
Muammar Gaddafi  and insurgents, supported by foreign inter-
vention under the aegis of the UN. These geopolitical upheavals 
in the Middle East resulted in fears of widespread disruption to 
oil supplies, leading to an explosion in oil prices, which in early 
February broke through the psychological barrier of $100 per bar-
rel for Brent, then settling above this level. In March, Japan was hit 
by a chain of catastrophes with a record-breaking earthquake, a 
devastating tsunami and a major nuclear incident. These caused 
disruptions to the supply chain for components and spare parts, 
affecting certain industries, in particular the car industry.

Infl ation fi gures began to show the marks of the rise in commodity 
prices in general and oil in particular. Global price indices accele-
rated between January and June from 1.6% to 3.6% in the United 
States and from 2.4% to 2.7% in the eurozone. The ECB – which 
is highly sensitive to the risk of infl ation – stepped up its stance in 
January before raising its key rate by 25 cents to 1.25% in early 
April. In view of the growing gap between the ECB’s tightening 
policies and the Fed’s continuing relaxation – with a Treasury pro-
gramme stretching until June – the forex market was guided pri-
marily by the difference in yields between various currencies. This 
trend worked in favour of the euro, with the EUR/USD exchange 
rate oscillating within a range of 1.35 and 1.49 during the fi rst half 
of the year. Meanwhile, the bond markets – having made a punt 
on recovery at the very start of the year – lowered their forecasts 
in a fragile and uncertain economic and fi nancial climate. Long-
term rates dropped back down below 3% on both side of the 
Atlantic. 

While the threat of infl ation continued to loom during the fi rst half 
of the year, the decline in confi dence surveys in May gave rise to 
concerns about the resilience of global growth to this series of 
shocks. In addition, the sovereign debt crisis continued to deve-
lop. In May - following Greece and Ireland - it was the turn of 
Portugal, which was forced to put itself under the umbrella of the 
EU in order not to be constraint by market brutal movements and 
give itself time to adjust. In June, investors began to speculate 
about an imminent default by Greece due to the EU’s inability 
to reach an agreement on how to resolve the problem of the 
country’s debt. Greek Parliament adopted a new austerity plan in 
late June, paving the way for new fi nancial aid. While EU offi cials 
have stated that they are prepared to extend this kind of support, 
the question of the involvement of the private sector in bailing 
out Greece has been a matter of discord. Faced with these poli-
tical procrastinations, the contagion has spread to countries that 
are fundamentally solvent but have weak public fi nances, such 
as Italy and Spain, giving rise to doubts about the integrity of the 
eurozone.
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  CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Condensed income statement

€ million

H1-11
H1-11 

Ongoing
activities

H1-10
H1-10 

Ongoing 
activities

Change
 H1-11 / 
H1-10(1)

Net banking income 3,210 3,207 2,923 3,226 -1%

Operating expenses (1,988) (1,938) (1,867) (1,815) 7%

Gross operating income 1,222 1,269 1,056 1,411 -10%

Cost of risk (214) (136) (405) (189) -28%

Income from equity affi liates 69 69 73 73 -5%

Gains/(losses) on other assets (6) (6) 1 1 ns

Pre-tax income 1,071 1,196 725 1,296 -8%

Corporate income tax (356) (398) (196) (377) 6%

Net income/(loss) 715 798 529 919 -13%

Minority interest 1 1 21 21 -95%

Net income (Group share) 714 797 508 898 -11%

Net income (Group share) restated(2) 681 764 460 850 -10%

(1) Ongoing activities
(2) Restated for revaluation of debt issues and hedges on loans

In the context of uncertainty about the world recovery, growing 
concerns due to European sovereign debt crisis provoked a 
general risk aversion and erratic market movements.

In this context, Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank 
maintained strong levels of activity in its different business lines 
and realised a satisfying performance.

The net income banking of ongoing activities stands at €3,207 
million, down by only 1% compared to the previous fi nancial year, 
proving the recovered balance between trading and fi nancing 
activities.

The active management of discontinuing operations considerably 
limited losses. 2011 net income is a loss of -€83 million compared 
to -€390 million at the end of June 2010.

Operating ratio of ongoing activities is 60% at the end of June 
2011, in line with refocusing plan targets.

The cost of risk is down by 28%, despite notable collective 
reserves due to concerns about Middle-East.

The results of Banque Saudi Fransi, which is accounted for under 
the equity method, were slightly down compared to the previous 
year.

After tax, net income – Group share from ongoing activities 
amounted to €764 million down by 10% compared to the fi rst 
half of 2010.
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  RESULTS BY BUSINESS LINE

Financing

€ million

H1-11 H1-10
Change
H1-11 / 
H1-10

Net banking income 1,290 1,287 0%

Operating expenses (451) (412) 9%

Gross operating income 839 875 -4%

Cost of risk (130) (157) -17%

Income from equity affi liates 69 72 -4%

Gains/(losses) on other assets (8) 1 ns

Pre-tax income 770 791 -3%

Corporate income tax (262) (221) 19%

Net income/(loss) 508 570 -11%

Minority interest (5) 14 ns

Net income (Group share) 513 556 -8%

Net income (Group share) restated(1) 504 544 -7%

(1) Restated for hedges on loans

Financing activities registered strong revenues. With €1,290 mil-
lion over the semester, they are stable compared to the fi rst half of 
2010, despite the unfavourable impact of the US dollar decrease.

Revenues from structured fi nance business remain at a high level, 
in line with previous quarters, and keep benefi ting from high 2010 
production levels. Results are particularly high in commodities 
trade fi nance that benefi ts from the oil price increase, as well as 
in shipping and aircraft fi nancing. Crédit Agricole Corporate and 
Investment Bank ranks number one (as against third rank) for pro-
ject fi nancing in EMEA zone (Source Thomson Financial).

In the context of pressure over margin, the commercial bank 
succeeded in maintaining its activity level. Syndication activities 
confi rmed their good positioning.

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank ranks number 
one in syndication activities in France, and got from the 6th to 
the 1st place in Latin America and from the 7th to the 1st place in 
Eastern Europe (Source Thomson Financial).

The cost of risk is down by 17% despite general reserves essenti-
ally due to the geopolitical context in Middle-East. Stock of gene-
ral reserves is €1,509 million at 30 June 2011.

2011 net income restated for hedges on loans is €504 million, 
decreasing by 7% compared to fi rst half 2010.



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AT 30 JUNE 20111

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 10

Capital markets and investment banking

€ million

H1-11 H1-10
Change

H1-11 / H1-10

Net banking income 1,624 1,671 -3%

Operating expenses (1,276) (1,208) 6%

Gross operating income 348 463 -25%

Cost of risk (6) (28) -79%

Income from equity affi liates (1) 1 ns

Gains/(losses) on other assets 2 0 ns

Pre-tax income 343 436 -21%

Corporate income tax (114) (137) -17%

Net income/(loss) 229 299 -23%

Minority interest 1 3 -67%

Net income (Group share) 228 296 -23%

Net income (Group share) restated(1) 204 260 -22%

(1) Restated for revaluation of debt issues.

In a diffi cult market environment dominated by the sovereign-debt 
crisis and risk aversion of investors, Crédit Agricole Corporate and 
Investment Bank managed to limit the decrease of its revenues to 
3% compared to 2010.

After a strong fi rst quarter, Fixed Income activities and especially 
interest-rate derivatives activities as well as bond markets were 
penalised by the resurgence of tension on debt markets.

However, commercial revenues remain at very satisfactory levels.

Revenues from Equity business are taken on by the noticeable 
slowing down of brokerage activities.

Investment banking activities realise a very strong semester with 
notably the success of LVMH’s buyout of Bulgari Spa along with 
the initial public offering of Prada S.p.A on the Hong Kong stock 
exchange.

On the other hand, brokerage activities are well down due to the 
decrease of transaction volumes in Europe and Asia as well as 
reserves on commercial litigations at Newedge.

Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank and CITICS an-
nounced their partnership agreement by which CITICS will be-
come a shareholder of CLSA and Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux, with 
a 19.9% stake in their capital.

The cost of risk remains non-signifi cant.

After recognition of tax charges, net income (Group share), res-
tated for re-evaluation of debt issues, is €204 million in the fi rst 
half of 2011.
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Discontinuing operations

€ million

H1-11 H1-10
Change

H1-11 / H1-10

Net banking income 3 (303) ns

Operating expenses (50) (52) -4%

Gross operating income (47) (355) -87%

Cost of risk (78) (216) -64%

Pre-tax income (125) (571) -78%

Corporate income tax 42 181 -77%

Net income (Group share) (83) (390) -79%

The contribution of discontinuing operations was signifi cantly 
reduced compared to 2010.

Exotic equity derivatives recognised positive results for the 
semester with €24 million, comparable to those of the fi rst 
semester 2010, which accounted for €28 million.

The correlation portfolio volatility is strictly managed and fully 
under control, in line with the stabilisation plan of June 2009, with 
an insignifi cant impact on the net banking income for the fi rst 
semester of 2011.

The fi nal default and recovery assumptions were -€87 million 
(net banking income and cost of risk) compared to -€398 million 
during 2010 fi rst half.

Those fi gures include counterparty risks on monoline insurers 
and Credit Derivative Product Companies, which exposures were 
signifi cantly and continuously reduced.

Additional information about the nature of main expositions is pre-
sented in the part untitled “Specifi c risks (Financial Stability Board 
format)”, page 20 of the business review.
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International Private Banking

€ million

H1-11 H1-10
Change

H1-11 / H1-10

Net banking income 293 271 8%

Operating expenses (211) (190) 11%

Gross operating income 82 81 1%

Cost of risk 0 (4) ns

Income from equity affi liates 1

Pre-tax income 83 77 8%

Corporate income tax (15) (14) 7%

Net income/(loss) 68 63 8%

Minority interests 5 4 25%

Net income (Group share) 63 59 7%

Revenues from international private banking increased by 8% 
compared to the fi rst half of 2010.

Infl ows were positive during the fi rst half and accounted for €1 
billion at 30 June 2011. Assets under management at the end 
of June 2011 amounted to €71.9 million as against €71.3 million 
at the end of March 2011 and €71 million at the end of Decem-

ber 2010. The favourable market impact (€753 million) was not 
enough to offset a negative change impact of €1,605 million.

Net income – Group share is €63 million at the end of June 2011, 
up by 7% compared to the fi rst half of 2010.

Proprietary Asset Management and other activities

€ million

H1-11 H1-10
Change

H1-11 / H1-10

Net banking income 0 (3) ns

Operating expenses 0 (5) ns

Gross operating income 0 (8) ns

Cost of risk 0 0 ns

Pre-tax income 0 (8) ns

Corporate income tax (7) (5) 40%

Net income (7) (13) -46%

Minority interests 0 0 ns

Net income (Group share) (7) (13) -46%
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Financial structure

Shareholders’ equity
At 30 June 2011, Crédit Agricole CIB’s shareholders’ equity – 
Group share stands at €15.1 billion. The change in the fi rst half of 

2011 was due to the signifi cant increase of the net income (Group 
share) of €0.7 billion.

Related parties agreements
The main related parties agreements contracted as of 30 June 
2011 are described in note 2.3 of the notes to the interim 

consolidated fi nancial statements for the six months ended 30 
June 2011.

European Solvency ratio (CRD)

The table below sets out the CRD solvency ratio and discusses 
the risks faced by the Crédit Agricole CIB Group measured on a 

credit-risk-equivalent basis (after counterparty weighting), along 
with the level of regulatory capital.

At 30 June 2011, the Crédit Agricole CIB Group’s CRD solvency 
ratio under Basel II was 11.5% and 10.7% for the Tier One ratio.

At 31 December 2010, the Crédit Agricole CIB Group’s overall 
ratio was 11.6% and the Tier 1 ratio post-fl oor was 10.7%.

€ billion 30.06.2011 31.1202010

Tier I capital [A] 17.3 17.3

Capital and reserves, Group share 14.6 14.2

Minority interests 0.1 0.1

Capital included in core capital with the agreement of French Prudential Supervisory 
Authority

Hybrid securities 4.7 5.1

Deductions of intangible assets (2.1) (2.1)

Tier II capital [B] 3.7 3.9

Tier III capital

Deductions from Tier I capital and Tier II capital (4) (4.1)

Deductions from Tier I capital [C] (2) (2.1)

Deductions from Tier II capital [D] (2) (2.1)

Including stakes in credit and banking institutions amounting to more than 10% of 
their capital or which provide signifi cant infl uence over these institutions (50%)

(1.5) (1.5)

Including securitisation exposures weighted at 1,250% (2.5) (2.6)

Including, for institutions using IRB approaches, the negative difference between the 
sum of value adjustments and collective impairment losses and the relevant expo-
sures and the expected loss

Total available capital 17.0 17.1

Tier 1 [A - C] 15.3 15.3

Tier 2 [B - D] 1.7 1.8

Tier 3

Credit risk 101.2 108.2

Market risk 6.8 6.7

Operational risk 13.2 13.2

Total risk-weighted asset pre-fl oor 121.2 128.1

Total risk post fl oor 143.5 142.6

Tier I solvency ratio 10.7% 10.7%

Overall solvency ratio 11.5% 11.6%

Tier I solvency ratio pre-fl oor 12,6% 11,9%
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Change in risk-weighted assets

Basel II risk-weighted assets totalled €143.5 billion at 30 June 
2011, that is to say almost stability compared to those at the end 
of 2010 (+0.6%, or + €0.9 billion).

The evolution in the 2011 fi rst half breaks down as follows:

•  credit risks decreased by €3.1 billion excluding currency effect, 
mainly due to the favourable evolution of Basel parameters (net 
rating effect, methodological gains, portfolio effect), which more 
than offset a moderate increase in volume and the reduction 
of CPM protections impact (mainly due to natural amortisation 
and the voluntary reduction of Basel I protections, as well as the 
reduction of the volume of CDS purchased);

•  currency effect on credit risks is estimated to be - €3.9 billion;

•  market risks are quite stable (+ €0.1 billion);

•  this overall decrease of risk-weighted assets is more than 
offset par the enforcement of the 80% threshold of Basel I risk-
weighted assets, which produced an increase of €7.8 billion of 
Basel II risk-weighted assets during the fi rst half of 2011.

Change in Tier 1 capital

Tier 1 capital totalled €15.3 billion at 30 June 2011, identical 
amount to the one at the end of 2010.

This almost stability was due to the association of several factors:

•  the net profi t at 30 June 2011, including predicted distribution, 
or €0.5 billion;

•  the currency effect of - €0.5 billion, with no impact on the ratio 
that is protected against currency variations thanks to the 
maintaining at the numerator of a USD part, similar to the one 
calculated from the parts of the denominator.

Total available capital is also stable along the semester, at €17 
billion. A slight improvement of deductions related to securitised 
assets offsets the light increase of Tier 1 capital.
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  RISK MANAGEMENT
The Crédit Agricole CIB Group is exposed to the following main 
risks:

•  credit risk;

•  market risk;

•  structural asset and liability management risks (overall interest 
rate risk, currency risk, liquidity risk);

•  specifi c risks presented in the format recommended by the 
Financial Stability Board;

This information is part of the interim consolidation fi nancial 
statements of Crédit Agricole CIB at 30 June 2011.

•  operational, legal and non-compliance risks.

The main changes in the 2011 fi rst half are described below.

Main changes in organisation of the risk management function  
In order to improve the effi ciency of the monitoring and the 
supervision of the activities, the CSP (Comité Stratégies et 
Portefeuilles) and the CSR (Comité Stratégique des Risques) 

merged into a single Committee (CSP : Comité Stratégie et 
Portefeuille).

  CREDIT RISKS

Main changes

Breakdown of counterparty risks by geographical zone

At 30 June 2011, loans granted to customers and banks by 
Crédit Agricole CIB (€296 billion versus €300 billion at 31 

December 2010) are broken down by geographical zone as 
follows:

Percentage 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Western European countries (excluding France) 28.3% 28.5%

France 23.3% 22.3%

North America 17.4% 17.4%

Asia (excluding Japan) 11.9% 12.6%

Africa and Middle-East 7.7% 8.0%

Rest of Europe 4.6% 4.4%

Japan 3.4% 3.3%

Latin America 3.2% 3.4%

Other 0.1% 0.1%

Source: Risk data (on- and off-balance sheet of customer and central banks commercial commitments).

The general balance of the portfolio, in terms of breakdown by 
geographical zone, remains globally stable over the semester.

Regarding Northern-African and Middle-Eastern countries, a 
more precise system of risk monitoring was implemented at the 

beginning of 2011, including notably the suspension of approved 
countries limits and the individual treatment of new operations. 
These restrictive measures will be maintained as long as the 
economic and political situation in these countries is not restored.

The credit risk scope includes commitments excluding derivatives 
and securities portfolios.

At 30 June 2011, the scope includes banks.

It is to be noted that exposures with counterparties belonging to 
Crédit Agricole Group are not reported in the below tables.

Management and measurement of credit risks are described from pages 95 to 103 of the 2010 shelf-registration document.

Scope: 
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Breakdown of risks by economic sector

At 30 June 2011, loans granted to customers and banks 
by Crédit Agricole CIB (€296 billion versus €300 billion at 

31 December 2010) are broken down by economic sector 
as follows:

Percentage 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Bank                                            18,0% 17,9%

Energy                                           16,3% 16,6%

Other                                    12,5% 11,5%

Shipping                                          6,0% 6,2%

Aircraft/Aerospace                         4,7% 5,1%

Real estate                                  4,6% 4,7%

Heavy industry                             3,9% 3,9%

Other fi nancial (non-banks)   4,1% 4,0%

Construction                                               4,1% 4,2%

Production and distribution of consumer goods 3,1% 3,0%

Telecoms                                      3,3% 3,0%

Automotive                                      2,8% 2,8%

Non-commercial services/Public sector/local authorities 2,7% 2,8%

Insurance                                       2,4% 2,5%

Food                                2,3% 1,7%

Other industries                                 2,0% 1,9%

Other transport                             1,8% 2,1%

Tourism, hotels and restaurant                    1,3% 1,4%

Healthcare and pharmaceuticals                             1,3% 1,5%

Media and publishing                                 0,9% 1,0%

IT and technology                        0,9% 0,9%

Wood, paper and packaging                  0,5% 0,9%

Utilities                                         0,5% 0,4%

Source: Risk data (on- and off-balance sheet of customer and central banks commercial commitments).

At 30 June 2011, loans granted to customers and banks account 
for €296 billion, a slight decrease of €4 billion compared to the end 
of 2010. This evolution shows a stabilisation of our commitments.

The general balance of the portfolio, in terms of breakdown by 
geographical zone, remains globally stable over the semester. 
Nonetheless, several changes occurred:

Banks outstandings have been relatively stable since December 
2010. The energy sector remains the fi rst non fi nancial sector 
which size is slightly down at 16.3% in the portfolio. This fi gure 
corresponds to the size of energy in the world economy. In 
addition, this sector gathers an important diversity of underlying 
instruments, actors and types of fi nancing which the major part is 
protected by assets.

The “other” sector, third in size, regroups exposures on 
securisations (mainly lines of liquidity granted to securisation 
programmes fi nanced through our conduits), as well as exposures 
on customers whose activity is very diversifi ed (patrimonial holding 
companies/ notably fi nancing holding companies).

The size of transport sectors (aircraft, shipping, automotive) is 
noticeably down, due to cautious management of exposures in 
these sectors that were directly subject to the crisis. The situation 
of the shipping sector stems from the expertise and the positioning 
of Crédit Agricole CIB in asset fi nancing for shipowners. Shipping 
transportation has been subject to a market reversal since the 
end of 2008. However, our portfolio is relatively protected by 

the quality of fi nancing structures. Indeed, our fi nancings in the 
shipping sector are mainly protected by the fi nanced assets, 
which are recent and diversifi ed. Aircraft fi nancing deals with 
fi nancing of assets, which are very good quality, fi nancing of 
important manufacturers among world leaders, or fi nancing 
of leading airports. The automotive portfolio is also voluntarily 
focused on important car manufacturers, mainly European ones 
with a reduced development in the USA, and on equipment 
manufacturers.

Real estate, after an important decrease in 2008 and a slighter 
one in 2009 due to implemented measures to limit and cover our 
risks, slightly increased in absolute value in 2010 and was stable 
during the fi rst semester of 2011. The quality of our exposures in 
real estate is deeply improving and is still under serious monitoring.

Heavy industry mainly concerns large companies in the steel, 
metalworking and chemical industries. These are global groups 
that benefi ted from the world recovery (strength of emerging 
markets, including China, and slow recovery of Western 
economies). The evolution of our risks in this business was 
positive along the past semester.

The “Production and Distribution of consumer goods” sector 
concerns essentially large French retailers that have global 
operations. Their ratings remain good, despite the competitive 
environment in which they evolve.
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Growth prospects for the second half

  MARKET RISKS
The methods for measuring and managing market risks are 
described on pages 104 to 107 of the 2010 shelf-registration 
document.

Market risk is the risk of a negative impact on the income 
statement or balance sheet caused by adverse fl uctuations in 
the value of fi nancial instruments following changes in market 
parameters:

•  Interest rates : interest-rate risk is the risk of a change in the fair 
value of a fi nancial instrument  or the future cash fl ows from a 
fi nancial instrument due to a change in the interest rate;

•  Exchange rates : currency risk is the risk of a change in the fair 
value of a fi nancial instrument due to a change in an exchange 
rate;

 

•  prices: price risk is the risk of a change in the price or volatility of 
equities and commodities, baskets of equities or stock indexes.

    The instruments most exposed to this risk are variable-income 
securities, equity derivatives and commodity derivatives;

•  credit risks: credit risk is the risk of a change in the fair value 
of a fi nancial instrument due to a change in the credit spreads 
of indexes or issuers. For more exotic credit products, there is 
also the risk of a change in fair value arising from a change in the 
correlation between issuer defaults.

Main changes

Risk management policy and 
objectives

  Organisation and monitoring System
No material changes occurred in the organisation of the market 
risk control System during the 2011 fi rst half. The Market Risk 
Department staff is stable. A large part of the Department’s 
investment is dedicated to recent regulatory changes on liquidity 
risks (June 5th, 2009 Reporting on identifi cation, measurement, 
management, and control of liquidity risk) and additional 
requirements of capital funds (Texts 158 and 159 of the Basel 
Committee).

IT investments also apply to the acknowledgment of the legal 
process (posting of collaterals or not) for the valuation of over-the-
counter (OTC) derivatives. At 30 June 2011, this process results 
in a reserve of €160 million.

  Methodology and measurement System
Risk measurement methods did not undergo any material 
changes during the fi rst half.

Several additional measures dealing with new regulations have 
been implemented. They concern liquidity risk and additional 
prudential capital requirements regarding trading activities. For 
that matter, a stressed VaR calculation and changes in methods 
of measuring specifi c interest rate risk have been implemented.

The VaR calculated on investment portfolios was subject to high 
volatility from sovereign issuers credit spreads. Nevertheless, 
these portfolios remain essential for liquidity management. In 
agreement with Crédit Agricole S.A., it was decided to reduce 
the limit of VaR applied to strategic activities (from €35 million 
to €32 million), simultaneously with the exclusion of investment 
portfolios of this limit perimeter. This measure was recorded on 
19 May 2011. Since then, VaR of investment portfolios has been 
followed separately.

Otherwise, as part of the recent evolution of peripheral European 
sovereign debt markets, specifi c measures have been taken to 
monitor the maturity of reverse repos and to limit the exposition to 
a combined default risk of a counterparty and an issuer.

Stress measures have been modifi ed in order to better account 
for sovereign risk.

Crédit Agricole CIB will continue to lead its prudential policy 
concerning risks during the second half of 2011, given the risk of 
economic slowdown, consequence of austerity plans.

Indeed, even though certain signals of improvement of the 
economic situation are perceptible, uncertainty remains at a high 

level, especially because of the demand in developed countries 
that may decrease and the political and social environment.
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Exposure (Value at Risk)

  Crédit Agricole CIB regulatory VaR during the fi rst half of 2011

VaR averaged €17 million during the fi rst half of 2011, down 
compared to €27 million along 2010. At 30 June 2011, VaR was 
registered at €14 million. Overall, the VaR level was very stable 
along the semester, generally between €15 and €20 million.

The historical VaR being measured on a rolling one year horizon, 
2011 exposures. Risk profi le reduction in all business lines 
contributed to reduce exposures within the VaR perimeter.

Credit market activities which previously represented a large part 
of the regulatory VaR were down signifi cantly. End of June 2011, 
Credit VaR amounts to €7 million, very near to the level of Fixed 
Income’s one. The decrease in the Credit VaR is mainly due to 
the measures taken to manage the intrinsic risk in the correlation 
portfolio.

Fixed Income activities are the fi rst contributor to VaR. Despite 
continued high volatility in fi xed income markets, mainly on 
European sovereign debts, the cautious management of the 
Bank’s risk profi le led to a stabilisation of the average VaR at a 
similar level to the one registered during the fi rst half of 2010 (€11 
million at 30 June 2011).

Other activities’ VaR (interest rate, forex, commodities) remain 
low.

  Daily change in Crédit Agricole CIB VaR
  Regulatory VaR - 2010 and 2011 fi rst half
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€ million 30/06/2011 Minimum Maximum
Moyenne
S1 2011

Interest rate 9 8 17 11

Equities 3 2 5 3

Forex 2 2 6 4

Credit 7 6 13 9

Commodities 2 2 4 2

Compensation (9) (9) (18) (13)

Crédit Agricole CIB 14 14 21 17
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Growth prospects for the 2011 second half

•  Projects on which teams were focused during the fi rst 
semester will be continued, especially those dealing with the 

acknowledgment of the legal process (existence of collaterals) 
for the valuation of OTC derivatives.
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   SENSITIVE EXPOSURES BASED ON 
THE FINANCIAL STABILITY BOARD 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

The following disclosures are made in accordance with the recommendations of the Financial Stability Board. They form an integral part of 
Crédit Agricole CIB’s consolidated fi nancial statements for the period ended 30 June 2011 and are covered by the Statutory Auditors’ report 
on the interim fi nancial information.

 

Summary table of exposures

€ million

Assets under loans and receivables
Accounting 

category

Assets at fair value
Accounting 

categoryGross 
exposure

Discount
Collective 

reserve
Net 

exposure
Gross 

exposure
Discount

Net 
exposure

RMBS 1,257 (320) (29) 908
(1)

404 (270) 134

(3)

CMBS 185 (8) (13) 164 14 (1) 13

Unhedged super senior CDOs 3,057 (1,212) (668) 1,178

(2)

5,543 (4,484) 1,058

Unhedged mezzanine CDOs 1,012 (1,012) 0

Unhedged CLOs 874 (51) (9) 814 393 (57) 336

Protection acquired from monolines* 227 (130) 97
(4)

Protections acquired from CDPC* 609 (101) 508

(1) Loans and receivables to credit institutions and to customers - securities not listed in an active market  (see note 5.3 to the consolidated fi nancial statements).
(2) Loans and receivables to customers - securities not listed in an active market (see note 5.3 to the consolidated fi nancial statements).
(3) Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss - bonds and other fi xed-income securities and derivatives (see note 5.1 to the consolidated fi nancial statements).
(4) Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss - derivatives (see note 5.1 to the consolidated fi nancial statements).
* Gross exposure corresponds to fair value of protections before adjustment.
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Mortgage ABS

€ million United States United Kingdom Spain

RMBS 31.12.2010 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2011

Recognised under loans and receivables

Gross exposure 1,009 881 301 196 198 180

Discount* (344) (289) (60) (38) (26) (22)

Net exposure in millions of euros 665 592 241 158 172 158

Recognised under assets measured at fair 
value

Gross exposure 389 299 80 72 35 33

Discount (344) (261) (5) (4) (3) (5)

Net exposure in millions of euros 45 38 75 68 32 28

% underlying subprime on net exposure 95% 96%

Breakdown by rating on total gross exposure 

AAA 5% 3% 48% 40% 65% 35%

AA 4% 2% 35% 20% 9% 29%

A 1% 3% 6% 17% 26% 36%

BBB 3% 4% 1% 11%

BB 4% 3% 10% 12%

B 4% 6%

CCC 23% 24%

CC 14% 14%

C 36% 33%

Non rated 6% 8%

€ million United States United Kingdom Other

CMBS 31.12.2010 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2011

Recognised under loans and receivables

Net exposure* 73 67 122 97

Recognised under assets measured at fair 
value

Net exposure 12 8 5 5

* of which €42m of collective reserves at 30 June 2011 compared to €31m at December 2010.

Purchases of RMBS and CMBS credit protections measured at 
fair value:

•  31 December 2010: gross exposure = €589 million, fair value 
= €175 million;

•  30 June 2011: gross exposure = €491 million, fair value = €139 
million.

Real-estate ABS measured at fair value are valued on the basis of 
data from external contributors.



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AT 30 JUNE 20111

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 22

Method used to measure super 
senior CDOs with US residential 
mortgages underlyings

Super senior CDOs measured at fair value

Discounts were calculated by applying a credit scenario to the 
underlying (mainly residential mortgages) of the ABSs making up 
each CDO.

Final loss rates on continuing loans are adjusted on:

•  The quality and origination date of each loan;

•  Past performance (early redemptions, repayments, actual 
losses).

Since the end of March, rates of loss are presented in percentage 
of the nominal of actual loans (until then, rates of loss were 

estimated in percentage of the nominal of actual loans at the 
origin). Notably, this method allows us to visualise our hypothesis 
of loss according to our risks, still in the balance sheet. 

Loss rated on subprime
produced

Closing date 2005 2006 2007

31.12.2010 32% 42% 50%

30.06.2011 50% 60% 60%

Super senior CDOs measured at amortised cost

These are impaired if there is an identifi ed credit risk.

Unhedged super senior CDOs with US residential mortgages underlying
At 30 June 2011, Crédit Agricole CIB net exposure on unhedged super senior CDOs with US residential mortgages underlying was €2.2 
billion after a collective reserve of €668 million.

Breakdown of super senior CDOs 

€ million
Assets at
fair value

Assets in loans 
and receivables

Nominal 5,543 3,057

Discount 4,484 1,212

Collective reserves 668

Net exposure 1,058 1,178

Net amount (at 31 December 2010) 1,246 1,396

Discount rate (1) 81% 71%

Underlying

% of underlying subprime assets produced before 2006 51% 34%

% of underlying subprime assetsproduced in 2006 and 2007 16% 16%

%  of underlying Alt A assets 8% 16%

% of underlying Jumbo assets 7% 4%

(1) After inclusion of fully written down tranches

  Other exposures at 30 June 2011

€ million Nominal Discount
Collective 
reserves

Net

Unhedged CLOs measured at fair value 393 (57) 336

Unhedged CLOs recognised in loans and receivables 874 (51) (9) 814

Unhedged mezzanine CDOs 1,012 (1,012) 0
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Protections on monolines at 30 June 2011

€ million

Monolines to hedge Total protections 
acquired from 

monolines
US residential 

CDOs
Corporate 

CDOs
CLOs

Other under-
lyings

Gross notional amount of purchased protection 117 5,201 925 342 6,585

Gross notional amount of hedged items 117 5,201 925 342 6,585

Fair value of hedged items 79 5,155 862 262 6,358

Fair value of protection before value 
adjustments and hedges

38 46 63 80 227

Value adjustments recognised on protection (6) (25) (48) (51) (130)

Residual exposure to counterparty risk on 
monolines

32 21 15 29 97

Protections purchased from CDPC (Credit Derivative Product Companies)

At 30 June 2011, net exposure to CDPC was €508 million 
(compared to €672 million at 31 December 2010), mainly on 

corporate CDOs after a discount of €101 million (compared with 
€108 million at 31 December 2010).

AA
64%

BB
20%

B
8%

CC
2%

N/R
6%

Breakdown of net exposure to monolines at 30 June 2011*

* Lowest rating issued by Standards & Poor’s or Moody’s at 30 June 2011.

AA : Assured Guaranted

BB : Radian

B : MBIA

CC : Syncora (ex-XL)

N/R : CIFG et Ambac
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   MANAGEMENT OF STRUCTURAL FINANCIAL 
RISKS

Global interest-rate risks

Main changes
Method

Crédit Agricole CIB uses the gap method to measure its global 
interest-rate risk. This consists of determining maturity schedules 
and interest rates for all assets, liabilities and hedging derivatives 
at fi xed, adjustable and infl ation-linked interest rates: until the ad-
justment date for adjustable-rate items, until the contractual date 
for fi xed-rate items and using model-based conventions for items 
without a contractual maturity.

The gap measurement includes the rate hedging effect on fair 
value and cash fl ow hedges.

Exposition

Crédit Agricole CIB’s exposure to interest-rate risk on Customer 
Operations is limited given the standard of rate backing Crédit 
Agricole CIB’s exposure to interest-rate risk in these customer 
transactions is limited through interest-rate matching on custo-
mer assets by its market teams, and through the low level of non-
interest bearing deposits.

Interest-rate risk mainly derives from equity capital and equity 
investments, and for Treasury activities of the banking portfolio for 
less than one year maturities.

The Group is mainly exposed to changes in interest rates in the 
euro currency zone, and to a lesser extent to changes in US dollar 
interest rates.

Interest-rate gaps measure the surplus or defi cit of fi xed-rate 
resources. Conventionally, a positive gap represents an exposure 
to a risk of falling interest rates during the period under conside-
ration.

The results of these measurements at 30 June 2011 for entities 
fully Consolidated by Crédit Agricole CIB show that Crédit Agri-
cole CIB is exposed to a fall in interest rates:

€ billion 0-1 year 1-5 years 5-10 years

Average gaps US 
Dollar

(0.7) +0.6 +0.2

Average gaps Euro 
and other currencies

(1.1) +0.5 +0.5

Sensitivity and Stress scenarios
In terms of net banking income sensitivity for the fi rst half of 2011 
Crédit Agricole CIB could gain €51 million of revenues in case of 
a long-lasting 200-basis-point decrease in the interest rates, that 
is to say a 1.59% sensitivity for a reference net banking income of 
€3,210 million at 30 June 2011.

In addition, the income impacts of fi ve stress scenarios (three 
historical and two hypothetical) regarding the interest rate gap 
are measured on a quarterly basis and reported to the ALM 
Committee.

The scenarios are those used by Crédit Agricole CIB’s Treasury 
department:

•  The historical scenarios are: a major equity market crash (Black 
Monday in 1987) ; a surge in interest rates (bond crash in 1994); 
a sharp increase in issuer spreads (rise in credit spreads in 
1998).

•  Hypothetical scenarios: one is based on the assumption of an 
economy recovery (rise of the equity market, of rates in general, 
of the USD spot, of oil and decrease of issuer spreads) and the 
other on a liquidity crisis following the Central Bank decision to 
increase its key rates.

Simulations are made using the sensitivity of Crédit Agricole 
CIB’s interest-rate mismatch. Sensitivity is defi ned as the gain or 
loss arising from a 2% change in interest rates. This sensitivity is 
calculated in EUR and USD. The calculation is based on average 
outstandings over a rolling 1 -year period.

The shocks contained in these scenarios are calculated on a 
10-day basis, according to Crédit Agricole CIB’ stress scenario 
methodology. Sensitivity is « shocked » in various ways. The result 
of a stress test corresponds to the net present value of changes 
in the scenario’s characteristics.

These stress scenarios show relatively limited impacts, since the 
net present value of the maximum potential loss equalled 0.39% 
of core regulatory capital and 2.07% of net banking income at 30 
June 2011.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity and fi nancing risk is the risk of loss if a company is 
unable to meet its fi nancial commitments in a timely fashion and 
at reasonable prices when they become due.

These commitments include obligations to depositors and sup-
pliers, as well as commitments in respect of loans and invest-
ments.

Crédit Agricole CIB, as a credit institution, compiles with the liqui-
dity requirements set out in the following texts:

•  CRBF regulation 88-01 of 22 February 1988 relating to liquidity 
(abrogated at 30 June 2010);

•  Commission Bancaire instruction 88-03 of 22 April 1988 on 
liquidity (abrogated at 30 June 2010);

•  Commission Bancaire instruction 89-03 of 20 April 1989 on 
how to take account of refi nancing agreements in calculating 
liquidity (abrogated at 30 June 2010);

•  Commission Bancaire instruction 2009-05 of 20 June 2009, 
application with effect from 30 June 2010.

Policy and objectives
Crédit Agricole CIB’s policy for managing its short-term and me-
dium-term liquidity risk is set by its Asset-Liability Management 
Committee as part of the Crédit Agricole Group’s policy. 

Liquidity management
The Financing Committee shared by the Treasury Department 
and the Finance Department’s Asset-Liability Management unit 
meets monthly to analyze developments in long-term resource 
requirements and in market conditions. It sets the fi nancial terms 
of new transactions.

  Medium- and long-term management

Crédit Agricole CIB’s medium-to long-term liquidity management 
is performed centrally by the Asset-Liability Management Depart-
ment of the Finance Division. It defi nes internal transformation 
policies, rules and procedures, both on an overall basis for major 
currencies and on a specifi c basis for certain local currencies. It 
determines medium-and long-term fi nancing needs, as well as 
needs arising from fi nancial transactions concerning equity and 
long-term fi nancing.

  Short-term management

Short-term liquidity management is handled by the Bank’s Trea-
sury Department. It renews fi nancing and manages portfolios of 
liquid assets.

It sets rules and limits for the Bank’s various global liquidity 
centres. It ensures compliance with the applicable regulatory 
liquidity coeffi cient.

Methodology

   Liquidity risk measurement: short term 
(from intraday to one year)

In accordance with the order of 5 May 2009, the French Pruden-
tial Supervisory Authority General Secretariat allows institutions to 
replace, from June 2010, the calculation of the regulatory liqui-
dity ratio with an advanced approach based on internal methods. 
These methods are based on stress scenarios that must cover 
time horizons from intraday to 1 -year and at least three types of 
crisis: systemic liquidity crisis, bank credit crisis and a combina-
tion of the two.

The Crédit Agricole SA Group is developing a plan to ensure that 
all its subsidiaries comply with this order, and Crédit Agricole CIB 
is an integral part of the plan. The bank capitalizes on a number 
of existing tools that are already being used for the operational 
management of liquidity risk.

•  every day, the Treasury department calculates liquidity gaps on 
time horizons from intraday to 1 -year, assuming a total lack of a 
market access in the fi rst two weeks. Potential sources of addi-
tional liquidity are assets from central banks, followed by gaps 
with longer time horizons of up to 1 year, with variable assump-
tions regarding the renewal of maturing assets and liabilities 
corresponding to a liquidity crisis scenario. The calculation of 
these liquidity gaps is based on the bank’s fi ve liquidity centres, 
which make up most of the Consolidated balance sheet. Crédit 
Agricole CIB’s other entities are taken into account via intra-
Group items.

•  Crédit Agricole CIB also has a Contingency Funding Plan (CFP), 
which simulates the impact of a severe rating crisis for Crédit 
Agricole CIB over a three-month period, with short-term ratings 
falling to A2/P2 at the end of the second month. The CFP 
calculation is based on the fi ve liquidity centers: Paris, Tokyo, 
New York, London and Hong Kong. The rest of the scope of 
consolidation is taken into account via intra-Group items. The 
Contingency Funding Plan is produced monthly. The calculation 
of the Treasury department’s liquidity gaps has been based on 
the same scope as the Contingency Funding Plan, resulting in a 
daily proforma CFP calculation.

•  Crédit Agricole CIB also takes into account the fact that not all 
of the currencies in which it operates can be considered totally 
fungible. National regulators will seek to limit international out-
fl ows of cash in order to preserve the liquidity situation of their 
national fi nancial Systems. As a result, specifi c simulations are 
carried out for the US dollar, the balance-sheet impact of which 
is signifi cant. The Treasury department calculates liquidity gaps 
for 1-15 days in USD, and Crédit Agricole CIB USA implements 
a specifi c USD stress scenario as part of a 1 -month simulation 
of a complete closure of the USD market.

   Liquidity risk measurement: medium-
and long-term risk

Medium- and long-term risk is measured by calculating the Bank’s 
1 - and 5-year transformation mismatches.
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These mismatches are the difference between long-term uses of 
funds (comprising bank lending, securities and non-current as-
sets) and available long-term fi nancial resources. The transforma-
tion mismatch is calculated by applying various run-off assump-
tions to assets and liabilities with no contractual maturity, and by 
taking into account the contingent fi nancing commitments made 
by the Bank. Exceptionally, run-off assumptions are also applied 
to sight and term deposits in the private banking business.

The 1 -year transformation mismatch must remain below a set 
limit, taking into account the pressure placed on short-term mar-
kets by treasury operations. Specifi c sets of limits are applied to 
the most sensitive areas of Crédit Agricole CIB’s activities.

This approach is now complemented by a limit on the amount of 
short-term fi nancing that Crédit Agricole CIB can use to fi nance 
its balance sheet, as part of the common approach of the Crédit 
Agricole SA Group.

This method aims to ensure surplus liquidity over a 1-year time 
horizon in a market stress scenario, and results from the following 
principles:

•   the Treasury department will always maintain a minimum 
amount of short-term fi nancing from its usual sources;

•  the surplus must be covered by net cash infl ows in the following 
12-month period, based on maturing assets and liabilities, to 
which a set of renewal assumptions is applied;

•  asset and liability renewal assumptions, along with the stable 
portion of short-term resources, may vary between Crédit Agri-
cole SA Group entities.

This method is consistent with the calculation of the 1-year-plus 
transformation mismatch. It analyses more accurately the pres-
sure created by cash requirements in the short-term markets. 
Checks that the short-term fi nancing limit is being complied with 
may be carried out daily. These checks use the same IT resources 
as those used to calculate liquidity gaps.

Lastly, medium- to long-term liquidity risk assessment has been 
fi ned-tuned by validating and applying new run-off assumptions 
specifi c to certain business Units (particularity commodities and 
export fi nance).

Exposures

  Liquidity ratio

In accordance with the ministerial decree of 5 May 2009, the 
calculation of the liquidity ratio has changed in its defi nition of 
a standardised method. Crédit Agricole CIB must comply with 
this approach from 30 June 2010 up to the approval of the Cré-
dit Agricole Group liquidity management and monitoring System 
which will lead to an advanced method.

The liquidity ratio equals to short-term cash available divided by 
short-term cash out. It is calculated monthly, 100% being the 
minimum requirement. It includes prudential capital and it is cal-
culated on a stand alone basis.

At 31 December 2010, the Crédit Agricole CIB liquidity ratio 
amounted to 125%.

  Issues

Short-term fi nancing

In addition to traditional sources of short-term liquidity, Crédit 
Agricole CIB also has a policy of actively diversifying its fi nancing 
sources. This resulted in a program of structured issues specifi c to 
the US market, a domestic commercial paper issuance program 
in Japan and a CD program based in London and intended for 
sale in Asia.

Medium-and long-term risk

Crédit Agricole CIB’s long-term liquidity sources consist of custo-
mer deposits, interbank borrowings and issues of various types of 
debt securities (e.g. certifi cates of deposit, BMTNs and EMTNs). 
Because of the duration of the crisis that began in August 2007, 
Crédit Agricole CIB has stepped up issuance of products with 
liquidity options (EMTNs that can be called or put at the investor’s 
discretion).

Crédit Agricole CIB makes extensive use of its Euro Medium Term 
Notes (EMTN) programs: at 30 June 2011, amounts issued as 
part of EMTN programs represent approximately €22 billion under 
English law and €8 billion under French law.

Unless stated otherwise, issues carried out under these programs 
for Crédit Agricole CIB ‘s international and domestic customers 
are «structured», meaning that the coupon paid and/or the 
amount redeemed on maturity comprises a component which is 
linked to one or more market indexes (equity, interest rate, cur-
rency or commodity indexes).Similarly, certain issues are termed 
«Credit Linked Notes», meaning that the amount redeemed is 
reduced in the event of default on the part of a third party that is 
contractually defi ned at the time of issue. Crédit Agricole CIB and 
Crédit Agricole CIB Hong Kong regularly issue long-term certifi -
cates of deposit Calyon Australia and Calyon South Africa have 
their own local long-term issuance programs.

  Recent developments 

Crédit Agricole CIB has implemented a systematic booking 
policy for distributed loans, in order to maximize its ability to 
raise fi nance from the Banque de France, taking advantage of 
the looser eligibility criteria for loans tendered. It was one of the 
fi rst French banks to set up European cross-border customer 
loan refi nancing programmes with the Bank of France. Like other 
Crédit Agricole Group entities, Crédit Agricole CIB benefi ts from 
fi nancing arranged as part of the government plan to support 
the banking sector via Société de Financement de l’Economie 
Française.

Equity and long-term fi nancing transactions are also used to 
fi nance the Bank, although this is not their primary purpose.

•  Redeemable subordinated notes: considering the current ope-
rating structure of the Crédit Agricole SA Group, Crédit Agri-
cole CIB no longer issues redeemable subordinated notes, but 
uses subordinated borrowings entered into with Crédit Agricole 
SA. These borrowings are generally at an adjustable rate. The 
subordinated borrowings may be distinguished from ordinary 
loans and bonds due to the ranking of the debt contractually 
defi ned in the subordination clause. In the event of liquidation, 
borrowings obtained by Crédit Agricole CIB will be reimbursed 
after secured and ordinary-ranking creditors have been paid, 
but before reimbursement of Crédit Agricole CIB’s participating 
securities and loans.
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Exchange-rate risk

Structural exchange-rate risk
The Group’s structural exchange-rate risk results from its other-
than-temporary investments in assets denominated in foreign 
currencies, mainly the equity of its foreign operating entities, 
whether they result from acquisitions, transfers of funds from 
Head Offi ce or the capitalisation of local earnings.

In most cases, the Group’s policy is to borrow the currency 
in which the investment is made in order to immunise that 
investment from currency risk. These borrowings are documented 
as investment hedging instruments. In some cases, particularly 
for illiquid currencies, the investment gives rise to purchases 
of the local currency. Currency risk is then hedged, if possible, 
through forward transactions. In addition, The Group uses forex 
derivatives hedges for a major part of exposures due to the results 
of its foreign subsidiaries, which currency is not euro.

The Group’s main gross structural foreign exchange positions are 
denominated in US dollar, in US dollar-linked currencies (mainly 
Middle Eastern and some Asian currencies), in sterling and in 
Swiss franc.

The Group’s policy for managing structural foreign exchange 
positions aims to achieve two main goals:

•  in a prudential way, to protect prudential ratios by neutralizing 
the Group’s solvency ratio from currency fl uctuations; unhedged 
structural currency positions will be scaled so as to equal 
the proportion of risk-weighted assets denominated in the 
currencies concerned and unhedged by other types of equity 
in the same currency;

•  in a patrimonial way, to protect assets by reducing the risk of a 
fall in value in the assets under consideration.

Hedging of structural currency risk is managed centrally and 
arranged following decisions by the Bank’s Asset and Liability 
Management Committee.

Crédit Agricole CIB’s structural currency positions are also 
included with those of Crédit Agricole S.A., which are presented 
fi ve times a year to its Asset and Liability Management Committee, 
chaired by its Chief Executive Offi cer.

Operational exchange-rate risk
The Bank is further exposed to operational exchange-rate 
positions on its foreign-currency income and expenses, both at 
Head Offi ce and in its foreign operations.

The Group’s general policy is to limit net operational exchange-
rate positions as far as possible by periodically hedging them, 
usually without prior hedging of earnings not yet generated except 
if they have a high probability and a high risk of impairment.

Rules and authorisations applicable to the management of 
operational positions are put in place by decision of the Crédit 
Agricole CIB Asset-Liability Management Committee.

Currency risk is assessed mainly by measuring net residual exposure, taking into account gross foreign exchange positions and hedging.

•  Deeply subordinated notes: the deeply subordinated notes 
issued by Crédit Agricole CIB are fi xed-rate or adjustable-rate 
perpetual borrowings, senior to ordinary shares but subordina-
ted to all subordinated debt. The coupons are non-cumulative 
and subordinated to Crédit Agricole CIB’s annual net income 
which must be suffi cient to remain positive after payment of the 
coupon due for the fi nancial year in question. Notes issued by 

Crédit Agricole CIB provide for the possibility of early redemp-
tion by the issuer after the tenth anniversary of their issue, 
subject to the prior agreement of the Secretary-General of the 
Autorité de Contrôle Prudentiel. Depending on the issue, the 
interest rate may be increased after the fi rst possible date for 
early redemption by the issuer. There were no issues of deeply 
subordinated notes in 2010.
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Rate and change risks hedging

In managing its fi nancial risks, Crédit Agricole CIB uses interest-
rate swaps and forex transactions, as hedging operations as 
regards the intention for which they are undertaken.

Fair value hedges
The aim is to protect the intrinsic value of fi xed-rate fi nancial as-
sets and liabilities that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, by 
hedging them with instruments that are also at fi xed rate. When 
hedging takes place through derivatives (swaps), the derivatives 
are termed fair value hedging derivatives.

Hedging carried out in this respect by Asset-Liability Management 
relates to non-interest-bearing private-banking customer depo-
sits, which are analyzed as fi xed-rate fi nancial liabilities.

Cash fl ow hedges
The second aim is to protect interest margin so that interest fl ows 
generated by variable-rate assets fi nanced by fi xed-rate liabilities 
(working capital in particular) are not affected by the future fi xing 
of interest rates on these items.

When the required neutralisation takes place through derivatives 
(swaps), these derivatives are termed cash fl ow hedging 
derivatives.

According to IFRS 7, future interests related to balance sheet 
items under cash fl ow hedge strategy are detailed, by maturity, 
in the table below:

30.06.2011

€ million
0 to 1
year

1 to 5
years

Over 5 
years

Total

Hedged cash fl ows 
to receive

131 662 395 1,188

Hedged cash fl ows 
to pay

(5) (12) 0 (17)

 

   Documentation under IFRS of fair value and cash fl ows 
hedges

As regards macro-hedges managed by Asset- Liability 
Management, hedge relationships are documented from 
inception and checked quarterly through forward-and backward-
looking tests.

For this purpose, hedged items are classifi ed by maturity, using 
the characteristics of contracts or, for items without contractual 
maturities (such as demand deposits), runoff models based on 
each product’s behaviour. The comparison between this maturity 
schedule and that of the derivative instrument allows effi ciency of 
hedging to be assessed.

Hedging of net investments in 
foreign currencies
The instruments used to manage structural exchange-rate risk 
are classifi ed as hedges of net investments in foreign currencies. 
The effectiveness of these hedges is documented every quarter.
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Practices in terms

 process management

6%
6%

11%

5%

72%

  OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from shortcomings in 
internal procedures or information Systems, human error or

 external events that are not linked to a credit, market or liquidity risk.

Management of operational risks

The Risk Management and Permanent Controls division is 
responsible for supervising the System, and it is overseen by 
the Management Board through the operational risk section of 
Crédit Agricole CIB’s Internal Control committee. Operational 
risk management specifi cally relies on a network of permanent 
controllers, who also perform the functions of operational risk 
managers, covering all Group subsidiaries and business lines, 
and who are supervised by the Risk Management and Permanent 
Controls division.

The system is monitored by internal control committees under 
the authority of each entity’s management. Head offi ce control 
functions are invited to the meetings of these committees.

Risk identifi cation and qualitative 
assessments
In accordance with principles in force within the Crédit Agricole 
S.A. Group, Crédit Agricole CIB’s Risk and Permanent Control 
Department implemented a qualitative and quantitative System 
designed to identify, assess, prevent and monitor operational risk, 
as required by the Basel II reform.

The operational risk mapping process is applied to all Group 
entities. These risk maps allow Crédit Agricole CIB to supervise 
the most sensitive processes and to draw up control plans. They 
are updated every year.

Operational loss detection and 
signifi cant incident reporting
A unifi ed procedure for loss detection and for reporting signifi cant 
incidents has been set up across the whole scope of Crédit 
Agricole CIB. The data required by the internal model for 
calculating the economic capital allocation, in accordance with 
the Basel II advanced method, are consolidated into a single 
database that provides fi ve years of historical data.

Calculation and allocation of 
economic capital with respect to 
operational risks
Capital requirements are calculated annually at the Crédit 
Agricole CIB level, based on historical loss data together with risk 
scenarios. They are then allocated by Crédit Agricole CIB Paris 
business line and entity.

Capital requirement is calculated using the internal AMA 
methodology (Advanced Measurement Approach) of Crédit 
Agricole Group applied on Crédit Agricole CIB’s perimeter. This 
model has been validated at the end of 2007 by the Commission 
Bancaire (French Banking Authority).

Production of operational 
scorecards
The Risk Management and Permanent Controls division produces 
a quarterly operational risk scorecard, highlighting key events and 
movements in costs related to these risks. These scorecards 
provide global confi rmation of the main sources of risks: litigation 
with customers and management of processes (including those 
relating to market transactions) which determine the priorities of 
preventative or remedial action plans.

 

Quantitative fi gures
Breakdown of operational losses by nature on the basis of impact 
on the fi nancial results over 2008-fi rst half 2011 period.
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  NON-COMPLIANCE RISKS

Management of non-compliance 
risks
Compliance business line oversees compliance with laws and 
regulations applicable to Crédit Agricole CIB’s activities. Its work 
enables stakeholders (customers, staff, investors, regulators and 
suppliers) to be confi dent that these laws and regulations are 
being complied with and enforced. Compliance has two main 
missions:

•  To protect Crédit Agricole CIB from potentially damaging or 
illegal external activities. It has to deal in particular with two 
missions: fraud prevention and fi nancial security which involves 
the prevention of money laundering and terrorist fi nancing, and 
the management of asset freezes and embargos. Financial 
security relies on ongoing in-depth knowledge of customers;

•  To protect the interests of customers and its reputation in the 
markets by combating internal ethical breaches (insider trading, 
internal fraud, confl icts of interest, unsuitable advice etc.).

Compliance also ensures that the Systems in place for preventing 
these risks are effi cient by:

•  translating laws and regulations into procedures and compliance 
manuals;

• training staff in compliance matters;

• providing opinions on transactions referred to it;

• checking that the compliance System operates correctly.

Risk indicators
Non-compliance analysis and risk monitoring involves structured 
Systems in place as follows: 

•  governance  texts  and   rules  implemented   and   concerning 
compliance;

•  risk mapping, which allows the identifi cation and the assessment 
of non-compliance risks within the Group;

•  reporting, which allows the assessment of the global compliance 
system;

•  fi nancial security tools designed to generate and report alerts 
and handle them;

•  tools for monitoring sensitive or complex transactions and 
specifi c market transactions.

  LEGAL RISKS
Main ongoing legal and tax procedures of Crédit Agricole CIB and 
its fully Consolidated entities are given in the 2010 management 
report. 

At 30 June 2011, any legal risks that could have a negative impact 
on Group assets were covered by adequate provisions based on 
the information available to general management.

As of this date, to Crédit Agricole CIB’s knowledge, there are no 
other governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings that are liable 
to produce, or that have recently produced, a material impact on 
the fi nancial condition or profi tability of the Company or the Crédit 
Agricole CIB Group.

Non-compliance risk is the risk associated with failure to 
comply with banking or fi nancial regulations, internal policies 
and procedures or rules of conduct which may lead to criminal 

penalties, penalties assessed by the regulatory authorities, legal 
disputes with customers and, more broadly, reputational damage. 
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  OUTLOOK FOR THE SECOND HALF OF 
2011

Given the visible signs of contagion to two heavyweight eurozone 
countries – namely Italy and Spain – the EU went one step further 
during the exceptional summit of 21 July in an attempt to bring 
the sovereign debt crisis to an end. Recognising that Greece was 
clearly insolvent and overcoming the taboo of default by a euro-
zone member state seemed to be a necessary stage in tackling 
the source of the problem in Greece, namely its excessive debt. 
The strategy of putting the Greek government back into debt 
under punitive terms was abandoned in favour of a more suitable 
approach combining reducing the debt burden and more fl exible 
refi nancing terms. European taxpayers once again contributed, 
while private creditors have also agreed to bear part of the adjust-
ment, aware that it is in their interests to contain the Greek crisis. 

The issue of taking more preventive action in order to safeguard 
the integrity of the European Union has also been discussed. The 
European Financial Stabilisation Facility (EFSF) will thus be given 
greater fl exibility. It is now planned that on the recommendation of 
the ECB, the facility may exceptionally intervene in the secondary 
debt market in order to smooth out any problems, particularly if 
contagion spreads to Italy or Spain. Fundamentally solvent mem-
ber states facing temporary liquidity problems – and via these 
member states, banks needing recapitalisation – will be able to 
access the EFSF, which until now was reserved exclusively for 
countries covered by the Troika programme (EU-ECB-IMF). The 
aim of all of these measures is to stop contagion phenomena 
between member states and via the banking system by means 
of a self-fulfi lling cycle. However, this beefed-up response has 
not succeeded in calming uncertainties. Faced with renewed ten-
sions on the bond markets and in order to curb contagion, the 
ECB was forced to reactivate its bond buyback programme in 
August, extending it to Italy and Spain, allowing for risk premiums 
to decrease. In addition, the implementation of the securities ex-
change offer by private creditors and its corollary, the temporary 
default of the Greek government by ratings agencies, has created 
tension on the markets. 

The United States – also caught up in the debt trap - managed 
to settle its partisan quarrel by reaching a last-minute agreement 
paving the way for raising the debt ceiling. While the scenario of 
technical default has been lifted, a credible medium-term budget 
adjustment plan is still lacking. S&P has therefore downgraded its 
US credit rating by one notch to AA+. 

These doubts about indebted member states’ ability to put things 
back on track against the backdrop of sluggish growth plun-
ged the markets into turmoil in the summer. Rightly so, growth 
remains a cause for concern. During the second quarter, eco-
nomic activity was weak on both sides of the Atlantic (1.2% in 
the United States and 0.8% in the eurozone quarter-on-quarter 

on an annualised basis). The second half of the year also looks 
set to be diffi cult. The disappearance of the disruptions caused 
by the earthquake in Japan could give manufacturing a bit of a 
boost in the third quarter. However, the traction created by the 
building up of inventories is running out and domestic drivers will 
diffi cultly take over against the backdrop of high unemployment 
and growing uncertainty. The weak rate of growth is likely to leave 
little room for signifi cant improvement in the job market and high 
commodities prices are continuing to put household budgets un-
der pressure. The trend in the United States is therefore expected 
to remain lacklustre, while Europe – under the weight of budget 
adjustments – is expected to carry on at a slow pace. Faced with 
deterioration in economic conditions, the ECB – which conceded 
a further rate rise in early July – is likely to opt to keep the status 
quo until the end of the year. In the absence of a return to growth 
in the United States, the Fed could be tempted by a new stimulus 
with no guarantee of its effectiveness, keeping risk aversion at 
a high level and thereby preventing the successful implementa-
tion of monetary policy. The risk of sliding back into recession will 
remain one of the dominant issues on the markets. Safe haven 
stocks will continue to be bought up, which should benefi t the 
bond markets in countries considered safe and limit the rise in 
long-term risk-free interest rates (around 3% on both sides of the 
Atlantic at end-2011). The dollar should benefi t from this climate 
of risk aversion by default (target of 1.30 for the EUR/USD ex-
change rate in December).

For Crédit Agricole CIB
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank’s fi rst half results 
are in line with the targets of the medium-term strategic plan, 
thanks to good performance of fi nancing activities all over the 
period and a very strong fi rst half for trading activities.

Concerns about sovereign debt and turbulence on the market 
that stemmed from will hang over fi nancing and market activities 
during the second half of 2011.

Growth outlook of world economies and measures implemented 
by governments at the start of the school year will be as many 
indicators to focus on in order to determine the profi le of result 
for the second half.

In this context of scarcity of resources, our medium-term strate-
gic plan and the focus implied on our key-clients will constitute a 
major lever for the accomplishment of our fi nancial targets. 
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The fi nancial statements consist of the general background, Consolidated fi nancial statements and the notes to the fi nancial statements.

  GENERAL BACKGROUND

   LEGAL PRESENTATION OF CRÉDIT AGRICOLE 
CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

Company’s name: Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank.

Brand names are: Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank - Crédit Agricole CIB - CACIB

Address and registered offi ce:
9, quai du Président Paul Doumer
92920 Paris La Défense Cedex - France.

Registration number: 304 187 701 Nanterre Trade and Companies Registry.

NAF Code: 6419 Z (APE)

Corporate form:
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank is a French société anonyme (joint stock corporation) with a Board of Directors, governed 
by the laws and regulations applicable to credit institutions and limited company and by its Articles of Association.

Share capital: 
EUR 6,775,271,784
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  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

  INCOME STATEMENT

€ million Notes 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Interest receivable and similar income 3.1 2,691 5,132 2,606

Interest payable and similar expense 3.1 (1,677) (2,962) (1,518)

Fee and commission income 3.2 1,859 3,815 1,940

Fee and commission expense 3.2 (714) (1,352) (671)

Net gains/ (losses) on fi nancial instruments at fair value 
through profi t and loss

3.3 1,022 1,036 550

Net gains/ (losses) on available-for-sale fi nancial assets 3.4, 5.2 55 65 20

Income related to other activities 3.5 37 71 30

Expenses related to other activities 3.5 (63) (107) (34)

NET BANKING INCOME 3,210 5,698 2,923

Operating expenses 3.6 (1,916) (3,682) (1,790)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets

3.7 (72) (153) (77)

GROSS OPERATING INCOME 1,222 1,863 1,056

Cost of risk 3.8 (214) (638) (405)

NET OPERATING INCOME 1,008 1,225 651

Share of net income of affi liates 69 139 73

Net income on other assets 3.9 (6) (13) 1

Goodwill 0 0 0

PRE-TAX INCOME 1,071 1,351 725

Income tax (356) (309) (196)

NET INCOME 715 1,042 529

Minority interests 1 37 21

NET INCOME - GROUP SHARE 714 1,005 508

Earnings per share (in €) 5.10 3.00 4.48 2.27

Diluted earnings per share (in €) 5.10 3.00 4.48 2.27
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   NET INCOME AND GAINS/ (LOSSES) 
RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY 

€ million Notes 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Net Income - Group Share 714 1,005 508

Gains/ (losses) on currency translation adjustment (87) 129 278

(Gains)/ losses on available for-sale-assets (8) (58) (37)

(Gains)/ losses on derivative hedging instruments (34) (54) 53

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on post-employment benefi ts - (22)

(Gains)/ losses recognised directly in equity, Group share 
without affi liates

(129) (5) 294

Share of net gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity of 
affi liates entités mises en équivalence(1) (63) 94 200

Total gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity, Group 
share

3.10 (192) 89 494

Net income and gains/ (losses) recognised directly in 
equity, Group share

522 1,094 1,002

Net income and gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity, 
minorities interests

(38) 72 103

Net income and gains/ (losses) recognised directly in 
equity

484 1,166 1,105

(1)  The «share of other comprehensive income on investments accounted for under the equity method» is included in Crédit Agricole CIB Consolidated reserves.

Amounts are disclosed after tax.
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  ASSETS
€ million Notes 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Cash, due from central banks                                                                                                 19,740 19,400

Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss                                                                 5.1 331,058 388,531

Derivative hedging instruments                                                                                        1,151 1,184

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets                                                                                     5.2 - 5.4 20,590 19,098

Due from banks                                                                                                 5.3 - 5.4 76,116 71,581

Loans and advances to customers                                                                   5.3 - 5.4 157,516 157,667

Valuation adjustment on portfolios of hedged items 22 3

Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets                                                                                             

Current and deferred tax assets                                                                                           2,588 4,311

Accruals, prepayments and sundry assets                                                                           82,958 50,523

Non-current assets held for sale

Investments in affi liates                                                                                                           1,095 1,103

Investment property

Property, plant and equipment                                                                                              5.8 708 728

Intangible assets                                                                                                                   5.8 168 170

Goodwill 2.2 1,902 1,893

TOTAL ASSETS 695,612 716,192

  LIABILITIES
€ million Notes 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Due to central banks                                  706 757

Financial liabilities at fair value through profi t and loss                     5.1 333,126 361,185

Derivative hedging instruments                                                            1,600 1,273

Due to banks                                                                       5.6 73,258 75,339

Customer accounts              5.6 137,903 143,489

Debt securities in issue                                         5.7 54,126 61,925

Valuation adjustment on portfolios of hedged items 9 20

Current and deferred tax liabilities                                                                             449 612

Accruals, deferred income and sundry liabilities                      69,702 46,688

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale

Insurance companies' technical reserves 6 6

Reserves                                                                                                                 5.9 897 916

Subordinated debt                                                                                                    5.7 8,055 8,672

Total debt 679,837 700,882

Shareholders'equity 

     Shareholders' equity, Group share 15,128 14,606

          Share capital and reserves 7,513 6,557

          Consolidated reserves 6,620 6,634

          Gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity 281 410

          Net income for the year 714 1,005

     Minority interests 647 704

Total shareholders' equity 15,775 15,310

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 695,612 716,192



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 20112

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 38

  CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

€ million

Share capital and reserves

Retained 
earnings, 

Group 
share

Total gains/ 
(losses) 

recognised 
directly in 

equity

Net 
income 
Group 
share

Total 
Equity, 
Group 
share

Minority 
interests 
Share 
capital

Total 
share-

holders' 
equity 

premiums 
and 

reserves

Share 
capital

Share 
premiums 

and 
reserves

Elimination 
of treasury 

shares

Shareholders' equity at 
1 January 2010

6,056 7,011 0 13,067 432 0 13,499 910 14,409

Capital increase 0 0 0

Dividends paid in 2010 0 0 (26) (26)

Impact of acquisitions/ disposais 
on minority interests

0 0 0

Movement related to stock 
options

5 5 5 5

Movements related to share-
holders' items

0 5 0 5 0 0 5 (26) (21)

Change in gains/ (losses) 
recognised directly in equity

0 0 0 0 294 0 294 82 376

Share of change in equity of 
associates accounted for under 
the equity method

200 200 200 200

2010 net income 0 508 508 21 529

Other changes 1 1 1 0 1

Shareholders' equity at 
30 June 2010

6,056 7,217 0 13,273 726 508 14,507 987 15,494

Capital increase 0 0

Dividends paid in 2010 0 0 (12) (12)

Impact of acquisitions/ disposais 
on minority interests

0 0 (240) (240)

Movement related to stock 
options

4 4 4 4

Movements related to share-
holders' items

0 4 0 4 0 0 4 (252) (248)

Change in gains/ (losses) 
recognised directly in equity

0 0 0 0 (299) 0 (299) (47) (346)

Share of change in equity of 
associates accounted for under 
the equity method

(106) (106) (106) (106)

2010 net income 0 497 497 16 513

Other changes 20 20 (17) 3 3

Shareholders' equity at 
31 December 2010

6,056 7,135 0 13,191 410 1,005 14,606 704 15,310

Appropriation of 2010 earnings 1,005 1,005 (1,005) 0
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Consolidated reserves mainly include undistributed profi ts from 
priors years, amounts arising from the fi rst time application of 
IFRS, and consolidation adjustments.    
     

Amounts deducted from shareholders’ equity and transferred to 
the income statement and that relate to cash fl ow hedges are 
included in the net banking income.

€ million

Share capital and reserves

Retained 
earnings, 

Group 
share

Total gains/ 
(losses) reco-
gnised directly 

in equity

Net 
income 
Group 
share

Total 
Equity, 
Group 
share

Minority 
interests 
Share 
capital

Total 
share-

holders' 
equity 

premiums 
and 

reserves

Share 
capital

Share 
premiums 

and 
reserves

Elimination 
of treasury 

shares

Shareholders' equity at 
1 January 2011

6,056 8,140 0 14,196 410 0 14,606 704 15,310

Capital increase (*) 719 236 955 955 955

Dividends paid in 2011 (955) (955) (955) (19) (974)

Impact of acquisitions/ disposais 
on minority interests

0 0 0

Movement related to stock 
options

0 0 0 0

Movements related to share-
holders' items

719 (719) 0 0 0 0 0 (19) (19)

Change in gains/ (losses) 
recognised directly in equity

0 0 0 0 (129) 0 (129) (39) (168)

Share of change in equity of 
associates accounted for under 
the equity method

(63) (63) (63) (63)

2011 net income 0 714 714 1 715

Other changes 0 0 0

Shareholders' equity at 
30 June 2011

6,775 7,358 0 14,133 281 714 15,128 647 15,775

(*)  Crédit Agricole CIB made a €955 million capital increase with a share premium of €236 million.
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  CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash fl ow statement is presented using the indirect method.

Operating activities are Crédit Agricole CIB’s revenue generating 
activities.

Tax infl ows and outfl ows are included in full within operating 
activities.

Investing activities show the impact of cash infl ows and 
outfl ows associated with purchases and sales of investments in 
Consolidated and non-consolidated companies, property, plant 

and equipment and intangible assets. This section includes 
strategic investments classifi ed as available for sale.

Financing activities show the impact of cash infl ows and 
out fl ows associated with shareholders’ equity and long-term 
fi nancing.

Net cash and cash equivalents include cash, debit and credit 
balances with central banks, and debit and credit sight balances 
with banks.
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€ million
First half 

2011
First half 

2010
2010

Pre-tax income 1,071 725 1,351

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets

72 77 153

Net charge to impairment 168 (148) (26)

Share of net income of affi liâtes (69) (73) (139)

Net loss/(gain) on investing activities 8 22 12

Net loss/(gain) on fi nancing activities 132 155 297

Other movements 144 (20) 41

Total non-cash items included in pre-tax income and other adjustments 455 13 338

Change in interbank items (14,618) 2,869 3,675

Change in customer items (4,657) 1,806 10,298

Change in fi nancial assets and liabilities 22,642 (3,499) (21,099)

Change in non-fi nancial assets and liabilities (9,915) (5,310) 2,883

Dividends received from affi liates 12 28 28

Taxes paid 1,204 (263) (464)

Net decrease/(increase) in assets and liabilities used in operating activities (5,332) (4,369) (4,679)

TOTAL net cash provided/(used) by OPERATING activities [A] (3,806) (3,631) (2,990)

Change in equity investments 15 23 65

Change in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (54) (52) (118)

TOTAL net cash provided/(used) by INVESTING activities [B] (39) (29) (53)

Cash received from/(paid to) shareholders (15) (13) (305)

Other cash provided/(used) by fi nancing activities (213) (78) (326)

TOTAL net cash provided/(used) by FINANCING activities [C] (228) (91) (631)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents [D] (1,057) 2,258 1,460

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A + B + C + D] (5,130) (1,493) (2,214)

Opening cash and cash equivalents 20,008 22,222 22,222

Net gain/ (losses) on cash and central banks (assets and liabilities)(1) 18,638 22,286 22,286

Net gain/ (losses) on interbank sight balances (assets and liabilities)(2) 1,370 (64) (64)

Closing cash and cash equivalents 14,878 20,729 20,008

Net gains/ (losses) on cash and central banks (assets and liabilities)(1) 19,030 18,018 18,638

Net gains/ (losses) on interbank sight balances (assets and liabilities)(2) (4,152) 2,711 1,370

CHANGE IN NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,130) (1,493) (2,214)

(1) Composed of the net balance of the «Cash and central banks» items, excluding accrued interest.   
(2)  This is the balance of «Debit balances on performing current customer accounts and performing overnight accounts and advances» as detailed in note 5.3 

and «Customer current accounts in credit and overnight accounts and borrowings» as detailed in note 5.6 (excluding accrued interest).
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  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

    NOTE 1: ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND 
METHODS APPLICABLE, ASSESSMENTS AND 
ESTIMATES

The condensed interim Consolidated fi nancial statements of the 
Crédit Agricole CIB for the six months ended 30 June 2011 have 
been prepared and are presented in accordance with IAS 34, In-
terim Financial Reporting, which prescribes the minimum content 
and the principles for recognition and measurement for an interim 
report.

Pursuant to EC Regulation 1606/2002, the standards and inter-
pretations used to prepare the condensed interim Consolidated 
fi nancial statements are the same as those applied to the Crédit 
Agricole Group’s fi nancial statements for the year ended 31 De-
cember 2010, which were prepared in accordance with IAS/IFRS 
and FRIC, including the «carve out» version of IAS 39 as endorsed 
by the European Union, which allows for certain exceptions in the 
application of macro-hedge accounting.

The standards and interpretations are identical to those used and 
described in the Group fi nancial statements at 30 June 2010, 

except for the change in option for the recognition of actuarial 
gains and losses on the post-employment-benefi ts of the defi -
ned-benefi t plans. This is a change in option in the occasion of 
the implementation of IAS19 that was applied for the fi rst time in 
fi nancial statements at 31 December 2010.

This change in the accounting option did not bring signifi cant 
impact on the presentation of the fi nancial statements in 2010. As 
a result, the impact on the interim fi nancial statements at 30 June 
2010 is not subject to specifi c communication.

These standards and interpretations are supplemented by the 
provisions of those IFRS as endorsed by the European Union as 
of 30 June 2011 and that must be applied in 2011 for the fi rst 
time. These cover the following: 

Standards, amendments or interpretations
Date of publication by 
the European Union

Date of the fi rst-time compulsory 
application : fi nancial years 

commencing on

Amendment to IAS 32- Classifi cation of right issues ;
23 December 2009

(UE 1293/2009)
1 January 2011

Amendment to IFRS 1 and IFRS 7- Limited exemptions from 
comparative IFRS disclosures for fi rst-time adopters ;

30 June 2010
(UE 574/2010)

1 January 2011

Amendment to IAS 24- Related parties represented by a 
State body ;

19 July 2010
(UE 632/2010)

1 January 2011

Amendment to IFRIC 14- Recognition of Defi ned Benefi t 
Plans’ Assets ;

19 July 2010
(UE 633/2010)

1 January 2011

IFRIC 19- Extinguishing fi nancial liabilities with equity 
instruments.
This amendment will be applied for the fi rst time as of 1 
January 2011.

23 July 2010
(UE 662/2010)

1 January 2011

Amendments related to yearly improvements (2008-2010) 
modifying norms and interpretations as follows : IFRS 1, 
IFRS 3, IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 27, IAS 34, IFRIC 13.

18 February 2011
(UE 149/2011)

1 January 2011
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These amendments are not expected to have signifi cant impacts 
for the Group.

Standards and interpretations that have been published by the 
IASB, but not yet been adopted by the European Union, will be-
come mandatory only as from the date of such adoption. The 
Group has not applied them as of 30 June 2011.

The condensed interim Consolidated fi nancial statements are 
intended to update the information supplied in the Consolidated 
fi nancial statements of 31 December 2010 of the Crédit Agricole 
CIB and must be read as a supplement to these last ones. So, 
only the most signifi cant information on the evolution of the fi nan-
cial situation and the performances of the Group are mentioned in 
these half-year statements.

A certain number of estimates have been made by management 
to draw up the fi nancial statements. These estimates are based 
on certain assumptions and involve risks and uncertainties as to 
whether they will be achieved in the future. Accounting estimates 
based on assumptions are principally used to value the fi nancial 
instruments measured at fair value, investments in non-consoli-
dated companies, pension schemes and other future employee 
benefi ts, stock option plans, impairment of securities available 
for sale and held to maturity, impairment of unrecoverable debts, 
provisions, impairment of goodwill and deferred tax assets.
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   NOTE 2: SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION – 
RELATED PARTIES

The detailed scope of consolidation at 30 June 2011 is given in note 10.

2.1   Change in the scope of consolidation

2.2  Goodwill

€ million
31.12.2010 

GROSS
31.12.2010 

NET
Increase 

(acquisitions)
Decreases 
(Disposais)

Impairment 
losses during 

the period

Translation 
adjustments

Other move-
ments

30.06.2011 
GROSS

30.06.2011 
NET

Corporate and Invest-
ment Banking (excluding 
brokers)

644 589 644 589

Equity brokers 172 172 172 172

Brokers, other 661 661 (3) 658 658

International Private 
Banking

471 471 5 7 483 483

TOTAL 1,948 1,893 5 0 4 0 1,957 1,902

No signifi cant event since 1 January 2011.
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The Crédit Agricole CIB’s related parties comprise Group 
companies that are fully integrated or Consolidated under 
proportional or equity method as well as main senior executives 
of the Group.

Relations with the Crédit Agricole 
S.A. Group
On-and off-balance sheet amounts representing transactions 
between the Crédit Agricole CIB Group and the rest of the Crédit 
Agricole S.A. Group are summarized in the following table: 

€ million 30.06.2011

ASSETS

Loans and advances 23,697

Derivative fi nancial instruments held for trading 17,076

LIABILITIES

Loans and advances 13,370

Derivative fi nancial instruments held for trading 15,649

Subordinated debt 7,720

Preferred shares 550

FINANCING COMMITMENTS

Other guarantees given 419

Guarantees received 4,454

Figures for loans and advances represent cash relations between 
Crédit Agricole CIB and Crédit Agricole S.A.

Figures for trading derivatives mainly represent Crédit Agricole 
Group interest-rate hedging transactions arranged by Crédit 
Agricole CIB in the market.

Information concerning preferred shares appears in note 5.10.  
  
 

Relations between consolidated 
companies within the Crédit 
Agricole CIB Group
A list of the Crédit Agricole CIB Group’s consolidated companies 
can be found in note 10.

Transactions between two fully consolidated entities are 
eliminated in full.

Period-end outstandings between fully consolidated and 
proportionnally consolidated companies are only eliminated 
to the extent of the interests held by Group shareholders. 
The remaining balances are included in Crédit Agricole CIB’s 
consolidated fi nancial statements. At 30 June 2011, non-
eliminated outstandings with UBAF and Newedge on the balance 
sheet were as follows:

•  Due from banks:    €612 million

•  Due to banks:    €389 million

•  Securities sold under repurchase agreements:    €231 million

2.3  Related Parties
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  NOTE 3: NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

3.1  Interest income and expense

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Loans and advances to banks 553 905 410

Loans and advances to customers 1,750 3,469 1,718

Accrued interest receivable on available-for-sale fi nancial assets 235 517 282

Accrued interest receivable on hedging instruments 131 187 174

Lease fi nance 22 54 22

Interest income(1) 2,691 5,132 2,606

Deposits by banks (438) (823) (371)

Customer accounts (436) (747) (361)

Debt securities in issue (483) (819) (397)

Subordinated debt (132) (288) (150)

Accrued interest payable on hedging instruments (172) (246) (224)

Lease fi nance (16) (39) (15)

Interest expense (1,677) (2,962) (1,518)

(1)   Of which €56 million on individually impaired receivables at 30.06.2011 compared to €162 million at 31.12.2010, and €78 million at 30.06.2010.

 

3.2  Net fee and commission income

€ million
30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Income Expense Net Income Expense Net Income Expense Net

Interbank transactions 22 (15) 7 82 (36) 46 40 (18) 22

Customer transactions 206 (40) 166 363 (64) 299 194 (30) 164

Securities transactions (including brokerage) 569 (282) 287 1,176 (526) 650 554 (217) 337

Foreign exchange transactions 4 (4) 0 10 (13) (3) 5 (5) 0

Transactions on derivative instruments 
and other off-balance sheet transactions 
(including brokerage)

827 (327) 500 1,676 (610) 1,066 900 (354) 546

Payment instruments and other banking 
and fi nancial services

190 (40) 150 425 (90) 335 208 (41) 167

Trust and similar activities 41 (6) 35 83 (13) 70 39 (6) 33

Net fee and commission income 1,859 (714) 1,145 3,815 (1,352) 2,463 1,940 (671) 1,269
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3.3   Net gains /(losses) on fi nancial instruments at fair value through 
profi t and loss

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Dividends received 281 177 111

Unrealised or realised gains or losses on fi nancial assets/liabilities at fair value 
through profi t and loss

1,631 150 (65)

Unrealised or realised gains or losses on fi nancial assets/liabilities designated as 
at fair value through profi t and loss

(4) 9 5

Gain/(loss) on currency transactions and similar fi nancial instruments (excluding 
gain/ (loss) on hedges on net investments in foreign activities)

(887) 700 499

Hedge accounting gain/(loss) 1 0 0

Net gains/(losses) on fi nancial instruments at fair value through profi t and 
loss

1,022 1,036 550

Changes in issuer spreads resulted in a profi t of + €37 million at 30 June 2011 (taken to net banking income) on structured issues mea-
sured at fair value, compared with a charge of - €33 million at 31 December 2010 and a profi t of + €55 million at 30 June 2010.  
 

Net gain/(loss) resulting from hedge accounting

€ million

30.06.2011

Gains Losses Net

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of hedged items attributable to hedged risks 117 (228) (111)

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives (including termination of 
coverage)

228 (116) 112

Cash fl ow hedges

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives - ineffective portion 0

Hedging of net investments in a foreign activity

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives - ineffective portion

Fair-value hedging of the interest-rate risk exposure of a portfolio 
of fi nancial instruments

Changes in the fair value of hedged items 69 (43) 26

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives 43 (69) (26)

Cash-fl ow hedging of the interest-rate risk exposure of a 
portfolio of fi nancial instruments

Changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument - ineffective portion 0

Total hedge accounting gain/(loss) 457 (456) 1
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€ million
31.12.2010

Gains Losses Net

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of hedged items attributable to hedged risks 199 (167) 32

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives (including termination of 
coverage)

167 (199) (32)

Cash fl ow hedges

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives - ineffective portion 0

Hedging of net investments in a foreign activity

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives - ineffective portion

Fair-value hedging of the interest-rate risk exposure of a portfolio 
of fi nancial instruments

Changes in the fair value of hedged items 44 (47) (3)

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives 47 (44) 3

Cash-fl ow hedging of the interest-rate risk exposure of a 
portfolio of fi nancial instruments

Changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument - ineffective portion 0

Total hedge accounting gain/(loss) 457 (457) 0

€ million
30.06.2010

Gains Losses Net

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of hedged items attributable to hedged risks 230 (211) 19

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives (including termination of 
coverage)

211 (230) (19)

Cash fl ow hedges

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives - ineffective portion 0

Hedging of net investments in a foreign activity

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives - ineffective portion

Fair-value hedging of the interest-rate risk exposure of a portfolio 
of fi nancial instruments

Changes in the fair value of hedged items 48 (63) (15)

Changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives 63 (48) 15

Cash-fl ow hedging of the interest-rate risk exposure of a portfolio 
of fi nancial instruments

Changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument - ineffective portion 0

Total hedge accounting gain/(loss) 552 (552) 0

3.4  Net gains/(losses) on available-for-sale fi nancial assets

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Dividends received 37 52 29

Realised gains or losses on available-for-sale fi nancial assets(1) 24 45 9

Impairment losses on variable-income securities (23) (12) (4)

Disposal (gains)/losses on loans and advances 17 (20) (14)

Net gains/(losses) on available-for-sale fi nancial assets 55 65 20

(1) Excluding realised gains or losses on long-term impaired fi xed-income securities recognised as available-for-sale fi nancial assets given in note 3.8.
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3.5  Net income and expenses related to other activities
€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Other net income from insurance activities 3 6 3

Change in insurance technical reserves 0 1 (1)

Net income from investment properties 0 0 0

Other net income (expense) (29) (43) (6)

Net income (expense) related to other activities (26) (36) (4)

3.6  General operating expenses
€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Staff costs (1,323) (2,481) (1,195)

Taxes other than income or payroll-related (25) (35) (17)

External services and other expenses (568) (1,166) (578)

Operating expenses (1,916) (3,682) (1,790)

Detailed staff costs

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Salaries (1) (1,036) (1,943) (936)

Other social security expenses (252) (465) (200)

Incentive plan and profi t-sharing (19) (33) (15)

Payroll-related tax (16) (40) (44)

Total staff costs (1,323) (2,481) (1,195)

(1)  Including €54 million in charge for stock option plans at 30 June 2011 compared with €90.3 million at 31 December 2010. 

  

Expenses related to share-based payroll include expenses related to differed variable remuneration given to certain categories of employees.

3.7   Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, plant 
and equipments and intangible assets

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Depreciation and amortisation (73) (154) (78)

 - Property, plant and equipment (48) (104) (52)

 - Intangible assets (25) (50) (26)

Impairment 1 1 1

 - Property, plant and equipment 1 1 1

 - Intangible assets 0 0 0

Total (72) (153) (77)



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 20112

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 50

3.8  Cost of risk

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Charge to reserves and impairment (319) (639) (344)

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets (2) (29) 0

Loans and advances (309) (509) (308)

Other assets 0 (2) (1)

Financing commitments (3) (4) (5)

Risks and expenses (5) (95) (30)

Write-backs of reserves and impairment 135 242 133

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets 33 20 0

Loans and advances 85 133 107

Other assets 1 3 2

Financing commitments 5 12 7

Risks and expenses 11 74 17

Charges to reserves and impairment net of write-backs (184) (397) (211)

Gains or losses on disposal of available-for-sale fi nancial assets (31) (19) 0

Bad debts written off-not impaired (4) (151) (164)

Recoveries on bad debts written off 12 20 15

Losses on fi nancing commitments 0 (42) (42)

Other losses (7) (49) (3)

Cost of risk (214) (638) (405)

3.9  Net gains/(losses) on other assets

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 0 1 1

Gains 0 1 1

Losses 0 0 0

Consolidated equity investments (6) (14) 0

Gains 2 5 0

Losses (8) (19) 0

Net gains/(losses) on other assets (6) (13) 1
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3.10   Change in gains/ (losses) recoqnised directly in equity

Gains and losses for the period are disclosed below, after tax.

€ million

Gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity
Total gains/ 
losses reco-

gnised directly 
in equity ex-

cluding share 
of equity 
affi liates

Share of 
gains/(losses) 

on equity 
affi liates reco-
gnised directly 

in equity

Total On foreign 
exchange

Change in 
fair value of 
available-
for-sale 
fi nancial 
assets

Change in 
fair value 

of hedging 
instruments

Actuarial 
gains / 

(losses) on 
post-em-
ployment 
benefi ts

Change in fair value (7) (34) (41) (41)

Reclassifi ed to income statement (1) (1) (1)

Change in currency translation adjustment (87) (87) (87)

Change in actuarial gains /(losses) on post-employment 
benefi ts

0 0 0

Share of gains/(losses) on equity affi liâtes recognised 
directly in equity

0

Gains / (losses) recognised directly in 2011 equity 
(Group share)

(87) (8) (34) 0 (129) 0 (129)

Gains / (losses) recognised directly in 2011 equity 
(minority shareholders' share)

(38) 0 (1) (39) (39)

Total gains/(losses) recognised directly in 2011 
equity(1) (125) (8) (35) 0 (168) 0 (168)

Change in fair value (41) (54) (95) (95)

Reclassifi ed to income statement (17) (17) (17)

Change in currency translation adjustment 129 129 129

Change in actuarial gains /(losses) on post-employment 
benefi ts

(22) (22) (22)

Share of gains/(losses) on equity affi liâtes recognised 
directly in equity

94 94

Gains / (losses) recognised directly in 2010 equity 
(Group share)

129 (58) (54) (22) (5) 94 89

Gains / (losses) recognised directly in 2010 equity 
(minority shareholders' share)

35 (1) 1 35 35

Total gains/(losses) recognised directly in 2010 
equity(1) 164 (59) (54) (21) 30 94 124

Change in fair value (30) 53 23 23

Reclassifi ed to income statement (7) (7) (7)

Change in currency translation adjustment 278 278 278

Change in actuarial gains /(losses) on post-employment 
benefi ts

Share of gains/(losses) on equity affi liates recognised 
directly in equity

200 200

Gains / (losses) recognised directly in the fi rst half 
2010 equity (Group share)

278 (37) 53 294 200 494

Gains / (losses) recognised directly in the fi rst half 
2010 equity (minority shareholders' share)

80 2 82 82

Total gains/(losses) recognised directly in the fi rst 
half 2010 equity(1) 358 (37) 55 376 200 576

(1) Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income for available-for-sale fi nancial assets are disclosed below:

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010 30.06.2010

Gross amount (8) (60) (58)

Tax charge - 1 21 

Total net (8) (59) (37)
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  NOTE 4: SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Defi nition of business
The naming of Crédit Agricole CIB’s business lines corresponds 
to the defi nitions applied within the Crédit Agricole S.A. Group.

Presentation of business lines
Operations are broken down into fi ve business lines.

Financing activities includes French and international commercial 
banking and structured fi nance: project fi nance, aircraft fi nance, 
ship fi nance, acquisition fi nance, property fi nance, and interna-
tional trade.

Capital markets and investment banking encompasses capital 
markets activities (treasury, foreign exchange, commodities, 

interest-rate derivatives, debt markets, and equity derivatives), 
investment banking activities (mergers and acquisitions and 
equity capital markets), as well as equity brokerage activities 
carried out by CA Cheuvreux and CLSA and futures brokerage 
activities carried out by Newedge.

Since the refocusing plan was implemented in September 2008, 
discontinuing operations have been segregated into a separate 
business line, which includes exotic equity derivatives, correlation 
activities and the CDO, CLO and ABS portfolios.

These three business lines makeup nearly 100% of the Corporate 
and investment banking business line of Crédit Agricole S.A.

Crédit Agricole CIB is also present in international private banking 
through its establishments in Switzerland, Luxembourg, Monaco, 
Spain and Brazil.

Proprietary asset management and other activities encompass 
the non-operational activities of the above business lines.

Analysis by business line

Transactions between business lines are conclued at market conditions.

€ million

30.06.2011

Financing
Capital markets 
and investment 

banking

Discontinuing 
operations

Total 
Corporate 

and 
investment 

banking

International
private
banking

Proprietary 
asset 

management 
and other 
activities

Total

Net banking income 1,290 1,624 3 2,917 293 3,210

Operating expenses (451) (1,276) (50) (1,777) (211) (1,988)

Gross operating income 839 348 (47) 1,140 82 0 1,222

Cost of risk (130) (6) (78) (214) 0 (214)

Operating income 709 342 (125) 926 82 0 1,008

Share of net income of affi liates 69 (1) 68 1 69

Net (gains)/ losses on other assets (8) 2 (6) 0,00 (6)

Pre-tax income 770 343 (125) 988 83 0 1,071

Income tax (262) (114) 42 (334) (15) (7) (356)

Net income 508 229 (83) 654 68 (7) 715

Minority interests 5 (1) 4 (5) (1)

Net Income, Group Share 513 228 (83) 658 63 (7) 714
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€ million

31.12.2010

Financing
Capital markets 
and investment 

banking

Discontinuing 
operations

Total 
Corporate 

and 
investment 

banking

International
private
banking

Proprietary 
asset 

management 
and other 
activities

Total

Net banking income 2,657 2,880 (374) 5,163 541 (6) 5,698

Operating expenses (832) (2,501) (108) (3,441) (385) (9) (3,835)

Gross operating income 1,825 379 (482) 1,722 156 (15) 1,863

Cost of risk (164) (118) (340) (622) (16) (638)

Operating income 1,661 261 (822) 1,100 140 (15) 1,225

Share of net income of affi liates 138 1 139 139

Net (gains)/ losses on other assets (6) (6) (7) (13)

Pre-tax income 1,793 262 (822) 1,233 133 (15) 1,351

Income tax (456) (84) 265 (275) (25) (9) (309)

Net income 1,337 178 (557) 958 108 (24) 1,042

Minority interests (23) (6) (29) (8) (37)

Net Income, Group Share 1,314 172 (557) 929 100 (24) 1,005

€ million

30.06.2010

Financing
Capital markets 
and investment 

banking

Discontinuing 
operations

Total 
Corporate 

and 
investment 

banking

International
private
banking

Proprietary 
asset 

management 
and other 
activities

Total

Net banking income 1,287 1,671 (303) 2,655 271 (3) 2,923

Operating expenses (412) (1,208) (52) (1,672) (190) (5) (1,867)

Gross operating income 875 463 (355) 983 81 (8) 1,056

Cost of risk (157) (28) (216) (401) (4) (405)

Operating income 718 435 (571) 582 77 (8) 651

Share of net income of affi liates 72 1 73 73

Net (gains)/ losses on other assets 1 1 1

Pre-tax income 791 436 (571) 656 77 (8) 725

Income tax (221) (137) 181 (177) (14) (5) (196)

Net income 570 299 (390) 479 63 (13) 529

Minority interests (14) (3) (17) (4) (21)

Net Income, Group Share 556 296 (390) 462 59 (13) 508
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  NOTE 5: NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET
   

 5.1  Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profi t and loss

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Financial assets held for trading 330,953 388,407

Financial assets designated as at fair value 105 124

Book value 331,058 388,531

Of which lent securities 2,172 2,999

Financial assets held for trading

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Loans and advances to customers (1) 278 435

Securities brought under repurchase agreements 48,872 54,560

Securities held for trading 66,845 82,212

     - Treasury bills and similar items 33,221 33,601

     - Bond and other fi xed-income securities (2) 17,597 31,839

     - Equities and other variable-income securities (3) 16,027 16,772

Derivative instruments 214,958 251,200

Book value 330,953 388,407

(1) including loans being syndicated.
(2) including monetary mutual funds.
(3) including equity mutual funds.

Financial assets designated at fair value 

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Securities held for trading 105 124

     - Bonds and other fi xed-income securities (1) 15 16

     - Equities and other variable-income securities (2) 90 108

Book value 105 124

(1) including monetary mutual funds.
(2) including equity mutual funds.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profi t and loss 

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Financial liabilities held for trading 333,126 361,185

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value 0 0

Book value 333,126 361,185

Financial liabilities held for trading 

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Securities sold short 26,251 25,486

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 56,699 31,828

Debt securities in issue 32,620 56,321

Derivatives instruments 217,556 247,550

Book value 333,126 361,185

5.2  Unrealised gains and losses on available-for-sale fi nancial assets

€ million

30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Fair 
value

Gains 
recognised in 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Losses in 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Fair 
value

Gains
recognised in 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Losses in 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Treasury bills and similar items 9,722 2 78 8,486 5 66

Bonds and other fi xed-income securities 9,553 61 67 9,242 85 93

Equities and other variable-income securities 531 121 14 561 120 17

Non-consolidated investments 784 144 6 809 147 11

Total available-for-sale fi nancial assets 20,590 328 165 19,098 357 187

Available-for-sale receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total available-for-sale receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0

Book value of available-for-sale fi nancial 
assets

20,590 328 165 19,098 357 187

Deferred tax (68) (48) (73) (53)

Gains and losses directly in equity on 
available- for-sale fi nancial assets (net of 
tax)

20,590 260 117 19,098 284 134
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Collateral securities:

During the fi rst half of 2011, Crédit Agricole CIB brought a 
€10,129 million asset to support Crédit Agricole S.A. involvement 
in different refi nancing mecanisms, compared to €9,129 million in 
2010. Substantially the risks and rewards of the fi nancial asset still 
belong to Crédit Agricole CIB.

Moreover, during the 2011 fi rst half, Crédit Agricole CIB brought:

•  €4,135 million of assets to the Banque de France for its refi nan-
cing, compared to €3,410 million in 2010.

•  €5,994 million of assets to support Crédit Agricole S.A. involve-
ment in the fi nancing granted by SFEF (Société de Financement 
de l’Economie Française) to the French economy, compared to 
€5,719 million in 2010. 

As at 30 June 2011, Crédit Agricole CIB has not used any fi nan-
cing granted by the Banque de France.

5.3   Due from banks and loans and advances to customers

Due from banks

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Banks

Loans and advances 38,204 29,813

     Performing current accounts in debit and receivables 6,234 5,431

     Performing overnight time accounts and loans 3,371 5,902

Securities bought under repurchase agreements 37,905 41,751

Subordinated loans 27 27

Securities not traded in an active market 361 376

Other loans and advances 3 3

Total 76,500 71,970

Accrued interest 147 148

Impairment (531) (537)

Net book value 76,116 71,581

Loans and advances to customers 

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Customer items

Bills discounted 10,682 9,934

Other loans 98,081 101,103

Securities bought under repurchase agreements 37,649 35,187

Subordinated loans 542 450

Securities not traded in active market 6,893 7,950

Short-term advances 54 53

Current accounts in debit 6,527 5,980

Total 160,428 160,657

Accrued interest 484 534

Impairment (3,735) (3,875)

Net value 157,177 157,316

Finance lease

Property leasing 336 349

Total 336 349

Accrued interest 3 2

Net value 339 351

Net book value 157,516 157,667
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Due from banks and loans and advances to customer by customer type

€ million

30.06.2011

Gross loans 
outstandings

of which 
impaired 

doubtful debts

Impairment
 on doubtful 

debt

Collective 
impairment

Total

Central governments 5,480 83 (81) (25) 5,374

Central banks 4,942 0 0 0 4,942

Banks 71,558 502 (475) 0 71,083

Non-bank institutions 43,994 749 (470) (991) 42,533

Corporates 104,622 1,665 (768) (1,219) 102,635

Retail customers 6,668 799 (44) 0 6,624

Total (1) 237,264 3,798 (1,838) (2,235) 233,191

Accrued interest, net 441

Net book value 233,632

(1)  Including €1,146 million of performing restructured customer loans.

€ million

31.12.2010

Gross loans 
outstandings

of which 
impaired 

doubtful debts

Impairment
 on doubtful 

debt

Collective 
impairment

Total

Central governments 6,427 82 (80) (28) 6,319

Central banks 12,109 0 0 0 12,109

Banks 59,861 541 (481) 0 59,380

Non-bank institutions 37,601 765 (491) (905) 36,205

Corporates 110,310 2,263 (952) (1,204) 108,154

Retail customers 6,668 901 (60) 0 6,608

Total (1) 232,976 4,552 (2,064) (2,137) 228,775

Accrued interest, net 473

Net book value 229,248

(1)  Including €770 million of performing restructured customer loans.

5.4  Impairment deducted from fi nancial assets

€ million 31.12.2010
Change in 

scope
Charges

Write-backs 
and

utilisations

Translation 
adjustmens

Other
movements

30.06.2011

Interbank loans 537 0 32 (5) (33) 0 531

Customer loans 3,875 1 343 (262) (195) (27) 3,735

     of which general reserves 2,137 0 209 0 (111) 0 2,235

Available-for-sale assets 517 4 25 (50) (18) 0 478

Other fi nancial assets 28 0 8 (3) 0 0 33

Total impairment of fi nancial 
assets

4,957 5 408 (320) (246) (27) 4,777
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5.5  Sovereign risk exposure 

Sovereign Debt – Net exposures

Considering the economic environment of the accounts closing at 
30 June 2011, characterised by a public fi nance crisis of certain 
eurozone countries, the table below shows Crédit Agricole CIB’s 

exposure to sovereign risk of these countries: Greece, Portugal, 
Ireland, Italy and Spain.

Regarding banking activities, fi gures are presented according to 
the method used at the occasion of the EBA (European Banking 
Authority) stress tests, that is to say exposures excluding reserves 
and counterpart risk hedges.

The European solidarity policy led to the defi nition of a support 
plan for Greece, Portugal and Ireland.

Considering the absence of a default situation and support 
plans implemented, none of these securities was subject to 
depreciation.

€ million

Net exposures Bank Activity

Total Bank 
Activity

of which banking book of which 
trading 
book 

(excluding 
derivatives)

Held-to-
maturity 
assets

Available-for-
sale assets

Loans and 
receivables

Greece
of which before 2020 maturity

Ireland 120 120

Portugal 328 169 497

Italy 1,072 200 878 2,150

Spain 765 29 794

Total 2,285 200 1,076 3,561
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Sovereign Debt by maturity (banking book)

€ million                                      Residual
  Maturity

Net exposures

Greece

Before 2020

                                            After 2020

Total

Ireland

1 year

2 year

3 year 120

5 year

10 year and more

Total 120

Portugal

1 year 204

2 year

3 year 124

5 year

10 year and more

Total 328

Italy

1 year 868

2 year 306

3 year 98

5 year

10 year and more

Total 1,272

Spain

1 year 522

2 year 243

3 year

5 year

10 year and more

Total 765

TOTAL 2,485
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5.6   Due to banks and customer accounts

Due to banks   

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Deposits 51,485 55,960

     of which current accounts in credit 4,690 4,229

     of which overnight accounts and borrowings 9,067 5,734

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 21,709 19,312

Total 73,194 75,272

Accrued interest 64 67

Book value 73,258 75,339

Customer accounts

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Current accounts in credit 30,290 29,829

Other accounts 64,565 73,317

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 42,893 40,172

Total 137,748 143,318

Accrued interest 155 171

Book value 137,903 143,489

5.7  Debt securities in issue and subordinated debt 

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Debt securities in issue

Interest-bearing notes 38 39

Negociable debt securities 53,983 61,820

Bonds 15 17

Other debt securities in issue 28 1

Total 54,064 61,877

Accrued interest 62 48

Book value 54,126 61,925

Subordinated debt

Fixed-term subordinated debt 3,543 3,717

Perpetual subordinated debt 4,434 4,797

Total 7,977 8,514

Accrued interest 78 158

Book value 8,055 8,672
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5.8   Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (excluding 
goodwill)     

€ million 31.12.2010
Change in 

scope

Change
increases in        

(acquisitions, 
business 

combination)

Decreases 
(disposals and 

redemption)

Translation 
adjusments

Other
movements

30.06.2011

Property, plant and equipment

Gross value 1,635 1 27 (15) (18) (1) 1,629

Depreciation and impairment (1) (907) (1) (48) 15 19 1 (921)

Net book value 728 0 (21) 0 1 0 708

Intangible assets

Gross value 530 1 28 (2) (14) 1 544

Depreciation and impairment (360) 0 (25) 2 9 (2) (376)

Net book value 170 1 3 0 (5) (1) 168

(1) Including depreciation of intangible assets led to third parties

5.9  Reserves

€ million 31.12.2010
Change 
in scope

Charges
Write-backs, 

amounts 
used

Write-backs, 
amounts not 

used

Translation 
adjusments

Other 
movements

30.06.2011

Financing commitment 
execution risks

13 0 3 0 (5) (1) 0 10

Employee retirement and 
similar benefi ts

403 1 16 (46) (9) (4) 0 361

Litigation 450 0 5 (3) (11) (5) 22 458

Other risks 50 0 61 (1) (17) (3) (22) 68

Total 916 1 85 (50) (42) (13) 0 897

5.10  Shareholders’ equity

Ownership structure at 30 June 2011
At 30 June 2011, ownership and voting rights is as follows:

Shareholders
Number of shares

at 30.06.2011
% of share % of voting rights

Crédit Agricole S.A. 244,236,706 97.33% 97.33%

SACAM développement(2) 5,596,561 2.23% 2.23%

Delfi nances(1) 1,102,707 0.44% 0.44%

Individuals 18 ns ns

Total 250,935,992 100.00% 100.00%

(1) Owned by Crédit Agricole S.A.
(2) Owned by Crédit Agricole Group 

The par value of shares is €27. All the shares are fully paid up.
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Preferred shares 

Issuing entity
Date 

of issue

Amount
of issue 

USD million

30.06.2011
€ million

31.12.2010
€ million

Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding LLC December 98 230 159 172

Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding II LLC June 02 320 221 239

550 380 411

Earnings per share

30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Net income (Group share) for the period (in million of euros) 714 1,005

Average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period 237,606,975 224,277,957

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate diluted earnings per 
share

237,606,975 224,277,957

Basic earnings per share (in euros) 3.00 4.48

Diluted earnings per share (in euros) 3.00 4.48

Dividendes

Dividend paid 
in respect of year

Net amount
€ million

2006 2,049

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011 955

With respect to 2011, the Crédit Agricole CIB’s General Meeting approved the distribution of a €955 million dividend totally given in shares.

In 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 no dividend was distributed.
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   NOTE 6: FINANCING AND GUARANTEE 
COMMITMENTS    

Commitments given and received 

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

COMMITMENTS GIVEN 163,624 159,636

Financing Commitments 120,426 115,736

     • Banks 13,251 13,932

     • Customers 107,175 101,804

           Confi rmed credit lines 106,623 101,268

           - Confi rmed documentary credits 11,165 11,824

           - Other confi rmed credit lines 95,458 89,444

          Other 552 536

Guarantee commitments 43,198 43,900

     • Banks 8,905 6,136

          Confi rmed credit lines 2,702 2,598

          Other 6,204 3,538

     • Customers 34,292 37,764

          Property guarantees 1,693 2,336

          Loan repayment guarantees 6,178 6,923

          Other guarantees 26,421 28,505

COMMITMENTS RECEIVED 144,867 147,906

Financing commitments 17,997 27,214

     • Banks 17,261 20,491

     • Customers 736 6,723

Guarantee commitments 126,870 120,692

     • Banks 12,018 10,580

     • Customers 114,852 110,112

          Guarantees received from government bodies or similar 21,987 22,648

          Other 92,865 87,464
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   NOTE 7: RECLASSIFICATIONS OF FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with the amendment to IAS 39, published and adopted by the European Union in October 2008, Crédit Agricole CIB is now 
authorized to reclassify securities as follows:

•  from «held-for-trading fi nancial assets» and «available-for-sale fi nancial assets» to «loans and receivables» if the entity concerned intends 
and is able to hold the fi nancial asset concerned for the foreseeable future or until maturity and if the eligibility criteria for this category are 
met (particularly fi nancial assets not listed on an active market);

•  in rare and documented circumstances, from «held-for-trading fi nancial assets» to «available-for-sale fi nancial assets» or «held-to-maturity 
fi nancial assets», subject to compliance with eligibility criteria.

 

Crédit Agricole CIB approach
Reclassifi cations from «fi nancial assets held for trading» by the Group since the effective date of the amendment to IAS 39 adopted by the 
European Union on 15 October 2008 were decided then carried out in accordance with the conditions set out by that amendment. They 
were recorded in their new accounting category at their fair value on the reclassifi cation date.

Reclassifi cations done by Crédit Agricole CIB
Pursuant to the amendment to IAS 39 published and adopted by the European Union in October 2008, in 2011 Crédit Agricole CIB made 
reclassifi cations as allowed by the amendment to IAS 39, as it did in previous fi nancial years. Information on these reclassifi cations is pro-
vided below.

  Reclassifi cations: type, reason, and amount

During the fi rst half of 2011, Crédit Agricole CIB reclassifi ed certain fi nancial assets for which its management’s intention changed from 
«Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss held for trading» to the «loans and receivables» category. It now intends to hold these 
fi nancial assets for the foreseeable future and not to sell them in the short term.

These reclassifi cations, which relate to syndication transactions, were made during the fi rst half of 2011.

As of this date, the reclassifi cation value of the amounts reclassifi ed during the fi rst half of 2011 is shown in the table below, together with 
the value as of the closing date of these reclassifi ed fi nancial assets and of assets that were previously reclassifi ed and remain on the asset 
side of Crédit Agricole CIB’s balance sheet at 30 June 2011.

€ million

Total reclassifi ed 
assets

Reclassifi ed assets
in 2011

Reclassifi ed assets 
in previously years

Reclassifi ed assets 
in previously years

Net book 
value at 

30.06.2011

Estimated 
market value 

at 30.06.2011

Reclassfi -
cation 
value

Net book 
value at 

30.06.2011

Estimated 
market value 

at 30.06.2011

Net book 
value at 

30.06.2011

Estimated 
market value 

at 30.06.2011

Net book 
value at 

31.12.2010

Estimated 
market value 

at 
31.12.2010

Financial assets 
at fair value 
through profi t or 
loss reclassifi ed 
into loans and 
receivables

6,448 5,981 9 9 9 6,439 5,972 7,647 7,061
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  Change in fair value relating to reclassifi ed assets, taken to profi t and loss

The change in fair value recognised in profi t or Ioss on assets reclassifi ed during the fi rst half of 2011 is shown in the table below.

€ million

Change in recognized fair value

First half 2011, 
at reclassifi cation date

2010

Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss reclassifi ed into loans and 
receivables

- -

  Income contribution of transferred assets since reclassifi cation

The income impact of transferred assets is broken down as follows:

€ million

Pre-tax earnings impact since reclassifi cation

Assets reclassifi ed 
during the fi rs

half of 2011
Assets reclassifi ed prior to 2011

Impact as of 
30.06.2011

Cumulative impact
as of 31.12.2010

2011
1st semester Impact

Cumulative impact
as of 30.06.2011

Reco-
gnized 
income 

and 
expenses

If the asset 
had been 
kept in its 
original 

category 
(change in 
fair value)

Reco-
gnized 
income 

and 
expenses

If the asset 
had been 
kept in its 
original 

category 
(change in 
fair value)

Reco-
gnized 
income 

and 
expenses

If the asset 
had been 
kept in its 

original cate-
gory (change 
in fair value)

Reco-
gnized 
income 

and 
expenses

If the asset 
had been 
kept in its 
original 

category 
(change in 
fair value)

Financial assets at 
fair value through 
profi t or Ioss 
reclassifi ed into loans 
and receivables

- - 28 (598) 123 232 151 (366)

  Additional information

At the reclassifi cation date, the reclassifi ed fi nancial assets paid in 2011 effective interest rates of between 1.92 % and 2.88%, with non-
discounted future cash fl ows of €9 million.
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   NOTE 8: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, 
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction.

The fair values shown below are estimates made on the repor-
ting date. They are likely to change in subsequent periods due to 
developments in market conditions or other factors.

These values represent the best estimate that can be made and 

are based on a certain number of assumptions. To the extent that 
these models contain uncertainties, the fair values shown may 
not be achieved upon actual sale or immediate settlement of the 
fi nancial instruments concerned.

In practice, and in line with the going-concern principle, not all 
these fi nancial instruments would necessarily be settled immedia-
tely at the values estimated below.

8.1   Fair value of assets and liabilities valued on the basis of 
amortised cost method

€ million

30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Book value
Estimated 

market value
Book value

Estimated 
market value

Assets

Due from banks 76,116 76,115 71,581 71,581

Loans and advances to customers 157,516 157,014 157,667 156,962

Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets

Liabilities

Due to banks 73,258 73,258 75,339 75,339

Customer accounts 137,903 137,903 143,489 143,489

Debt securities in issue 54,126 54,109 61,925 61,907

Subordinated det 8,055 8,055 8,672 8,672

In some cases, market values are close to book values. This is 
particularly the case for:

•  fl oating-rate assets or liabilities where changes in interest rates 
have no signifi cant infl uence on fair value, as the rates on these 
instruments are frequently adjusted to market rates;

•  short-term assets or liabilities where the redemption value is 
considered to be close to the market value;

•  sight liabilities;

•  transactions for which there are no reliable observable data.
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 8.2  Information on fi nancial instruments at fair value

Analysis of fi nancial instruments at fair value by valuation model

  Financial assets measured at fair value

Given amounts include related receivables and are net of impairments charges.

€ million
Total

30.06.2011

Price quoted 
for identical 
instruments 
in an active 

market: 
Level 1

Measurement 
based on 

observable 
data: 

Level2

Measurement 
based on non 

observable 
data: 

Level 3

Total
31.12.2010

Price quoted 
for identical 
instruments 
in an active 

market: 
Level 1

Measurement 
based on 

observable 
data: 

Level2

Measurement 
based on non 

observable 
data: 

Level 3

Financial liabilities held for 
trading

330,953 69,027 255,602 6,324 388,407 84,938 295,067 8,402

Advances to customers 278 278 435 435

Securities bought under repur-
chase agreement

48,872 48,872 54,560 54,560

Securities held for trading 66,845 62,113 3,693 1,039 82,212 79,472 1,529 1,211

    Treasury bills and similar 
items

33,221 33,221 33,601 33,601

    Bonds and other fi xed-
income securities

17,597 13,606 2,952 1,039 31,839 29,135 1,493 1,211

    Equities and other variable-
income securities

16,028 15,286 742 16,772 16,736 36

Derivative fi nancial instruments 214,958 6,914 202,759 5,285 251,200 5,466 238,543 7,191

Financial assets designated 
as at fair value through 
profi t and loss upon initial 
recognition

105 105 124 16 108

Securities designated as at fair 
value through profi t and loss 
upon initial recognition

105 105 124 16 108

    Treasury bills and similar 
items

    Bonds and other fi xed-
income securities

15 15 16 16

    Equities and other variable-
income securities

90 90 108 108

Available-for-sale fi nancial 
assets

20,590 16,919 3,671 19,098 16,860 2,238

    Treasury bills and similar 
items

9,722 9,722 8,486 8,486

    Bonds and other fi xed-
income securities

9,553 6,729 2,824 8,242 7,976 1,266

    Equities and other variable-
income securities

1,315 468 847 1,370 398 972

Derivatives hedging 
instruments

1,151 1,151 1,184 1,184

Total fi nancial assets at fair 

value
352,799 85,946 260,529 6,324 408,813 101,814 298,597 8,402
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  Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Given amounts include related debts.

€ million
Total

30.06.2011

Price quoted 
for identical 
instruments 
in an active 

market: 
Level 1

Measurement 
based on 

observable 
data: 

Level2

Measurement 
based on non 

observable 
data: 

Level 3

Total
31.12.2010

Price quoted 
for identical 
instruments 
in an active 

market: 
Level 1

Measurement 
based on 

observable 
data: 

Level2

Measurement 
based on non 

observable data: 
Level 3

Financial liabilities held 
for trading

333,126 6,618 323,406 3,102 361,185 5,589 351,656 3,940

Securities sold short 26,251 26,251 25,486 25,486

Securities sold under 
repurchase agreements

56,699 56,699 56,321 56,321

Debt securities in issue 32,620 32,620 31,828 31,828

Derivative fi nancial 
instruments

217,556 6,618 207,836 3,102 247,550 5,589 238,021 3,940

Financial liabilities 
designated as at fair 
value through profi t 
and loss

Derivative hedging 
instruments

1,600 2 1,598 1,273 1,273

Total fi nancial liabilities 

at fair value
334,726 6,620 325,004 3,102 362,458 5,589 352,929 3,940

 

Changes in valuation mode

Given the unavailability of certain prices on the market, we 
perform transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 for several bonds of the 

category « Available-for-sale assets ».
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8.3  Measurement of the impact of taking into account day-one gain

€ million 30.06.2011 31.12.2010

Deferred gains at 1 January 241 297

  Deferred gains generated by new transactions during the period 10 51

  Recognised in income during the period

    Amortisation and cancelled/redeemed/expired transactions (49) (107)

     Effect of parameters or products that became observable during the 
year

Deferred gains at the end of the period 202 241

   NOTE 9: POST-BALANCE-SHEET EVENTS
          

 Signature of a partnership agreement with CITIC Securities

At 9 June 2011, Crédit Agricole CIB and Citic Securities (CITICS), 
the investment bank of the Chinese conglomerate Citic, entered 
into a partnership agreement under which Crédit Agricole CIB 
will sell 19.9% minority stakes in both CLSA and Crédit Agricole 
Cheuvreux to CITICS for a total of USD 374 million. Crédit Agricole 
CIB will retain control over CLSA and Cheuvreux. Subject to the 
approval of the relevant supervisory authorities and employee 
representative bodies, these companies will be merged into a 
new entity by the end of 2011. It is expected that the transaction 
will close by 31 December 2011.

This agreement is the result of discussions that have been 
underway since May 2010, when the two groups jointly 
announced that they were entering into exclusive negotiations. 
The purpose of the discussions was to explore the possibility 
of creating a global institutional brokerage platform and an 
investment bank dedicated to the Asia-Pacifi c region.
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   NOTE 10: SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION AT 
30 JUNE 2011

      

Subsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates Country (a) Method

% control % interest

30.06.
2011

31.12.
2010

30.06.
2011

31.12.
2010

Parent company

Crédit Agricole CIB (SA) France parent 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Banks and fi nancial institutions

Banco Crédit Agricole Brasil SA Brazil full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Banque Saudi Fransi - BSF Saudi Arabia equity 31.11 31.11 31.11 31.11

Calyon Algeria Algeria full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Australia Limited Australia full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB China Limited China full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Merchant Bank Asia Ltd Singapore full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Services Private Limited India full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB ZAO Russia Russia full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Luxembourg Luxembourg full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Suisse Switzerland full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Suisse (Bahamas) Bahamas full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Yatirim Bankasi Turk AS Turquie full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Foncier de Monaco Monaco full 70.13 70.13 68.95 68.95

Finanziaria Indosuez International Ltd Switzerland full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

LF Investments LP USA D 1 full 0.00 99.00 0.00 99.00

Newedge (group) France proportional 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00

PJSC Crédit Agricole CIB Ukraine Ukraine full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

UBAF France proportional 47.01 47.01 47.01 47.01

Brokerage companies

Cheuvreux/CLSA/Global Portfolio Trading Pte Ltd.   Singapore full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

CLSA B.V. Hong Kong full 100.00 100.00 98.88 98.88

Crédit  Agricole Cheuvreux North America, Inc USA full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit  Agricole Securities (USA) Inc USA full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux Espana S.A. Spain full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux International Ltd UK full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux Nordic AB SB Sweden full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Cheuvreux S.A. France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Van Moer Courtens Belgium E 3 full 85.00 85.00
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Subsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates Country (a) Method

% control % interest

30.06.
2011

31.12.
2010

30.06.
2011

31.12.
2010

Investment companies

Amundi Ibérica SGIIC SA Spain equity 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00

CAFI  Kedros France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

CAI BP Holding France S 5 full 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00

Calyon Capital Market International France S 5 full 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00

Compagnie Française de l'Asie (CFA) France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Air Finance SA France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Capital Market Asia BV Netherlands full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Global Partners Inc.(groupe) USA full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Holdings Limited UK full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB UK IH UK full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Securities Asia BV (Tokyo) Japan full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Doumer Finance SAS France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Fininvest France full 98.27 98.27 98.27 98.27

Fletirec (groupe) France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

IPFO France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Mescas France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

SAFEC Switzerland full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Leasing companies

Cardinalimmo France full 49.61 49.61 49.61 49.61

Financière Immobilière Crédit Agricole CIB France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Assurances

CAIRS Assurance SA France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Other

Aguadana SL Spain full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Aylesbury BV UK full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Bletchley Investments Ltd UK full 82.22 82.22 100.00 100.00

CA Brasil DTVM Brazil full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

CA Conseil SA Luxembourg full 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99

Calixis Finance France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Calliope srl Italy full 100.00 100.00 67.00 67.00

Calyce PLC UK full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

CLIFAP France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

CLINFIM France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Asia Shipfi nance Ltd Hong Kong full 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99

Crédit Agricole CIB Finance Guernesey Ltd UK full 99.90 99.90 99.90 99.90

Crédit Agricole CIB Financial Products Guernesey 
Ltd

UK full 99.90 99.90 99.90 99.90

Crédit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions France full 99.72 99.72 99.72 99.72

Crédit Agricole CIB Global Banking France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
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Subsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates Country (a) Method

% control % interest

30.06.
2011

31.12.
2010

30.06.
2011

31.12.
2010

Crédit Agricole CIB LP France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding II LLC USA full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole CIB Preferred Funding LLC USA full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Private Banking Levante Spain full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Crédit Agricole Private Banking Norte Spain full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

DGAD International SARL Luxembourg full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Ester Finance Titrisation France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

European NPL S.A. Luxembourg full 60.00 60.00 67.00 67.00

Fonds Alcor Hong Kong full 98.76 98.76 98.76 98.76

Himalia PLC UK full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Immobilière Sirius SA Luxembourg full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

INCA Sarl Luxembourg full 65.00 65.00 65.00 65.00

Indosuez Finance Ltd UK full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Indosuez Holding SCA II Luxembourg full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Indosuez Management Luxembourg II Luxembourg full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Island Refi nancing Srl Italy full 100.00 100.00 67.00 67.00

Korea 21st Century Trust South Korea full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

LDF 65 (SPV) Luxembourg full 64.94 64.94 64.94 64.94

LSF Italian Finance Company SRL Italy full 100.00 100.00 67.00 67.00

Lyane BV Netherlands full 65.00 65.00 65.00 65.00

MERISMA France full 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Sagrantino BV Netherlands full 100.00 100.00 67.00 67.00

Sagrantino Italy srl Italy full 100.00 100.00 67.00 67.00

SNC Doumer France full 99.94 99.94 99.94 99.94

SNC Shaun France S1 full 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00

(a)  Entrance (E) in the scope:
E 1 Threshold crossing (including gain of control) 
E 2 Creation 
E 3 Acquisition 
E 4 Complementary acquisition
  
Exit (S) of the scope: 
S 1 Threshold crossing (including loose of control)
S 2 End of business (selling off, dissolution)
S 3 Disposal 
S 4 Partial disposal
S 5 Merger
  
Other:
D 1 Consolidation method change
D 2 Denomination change 
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  STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT 
ON THE CONDENSED INTERIM 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

 January 1st, 2010 to June 30th, 2011

This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in the French language and is provided solely for the 
convenience of English speaking readers.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards 
applicable in France.

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment untrusted to us by your Shareholders’ Meeting, and as required by article L. 451 -1 -2 III of the French 
Monetary and Financial Code, we have:

•  reviewed the accompanying condensed interim Consolidated fi nancial statements of Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank for 
the six months ended 30 June 2011 as attached to this report ;

• verifi ed the information contained in the interim management report.

Those condensed interim fi nancial statements were established under the responsibility of the Board of Directors, in a context characterised 
by a crisis of public fi nances in certain eurozone countries. It is our responsibility, based on our limited review, to assert our opinion on the 
fi nancial statements.

1. Opinion on the fi nancial statements

We conducted our review in accordance with the professional standards applicable in France. A review consists of making enquiries, primarily 
of senior management members responsible for fi nancial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. 
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the professional standards applicable in France and 
therefore provides less assurance than an audit about whether the fi nancial statements are free of material misstatement.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention giving us cause to believe that the condensed interim Consolidated fi nancial 
statements are not presented fairly in all material respects in accordance with IAS 34 – Interim Financial Reporting, as adopted by the 
European Union.

2. Specifi c verifi cation

We have also verifi ed the information provided in the interim management report accompanying the condensed interim fi nancial statements 
reviewed by us.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and consistency with the condensed interim Consolidated fi nancial statements.

Neuilly-sur-Seine, August 25th, 2011

Statutory Auditors

 PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS AUDIT ERNST & YOUNG ET AUTRES

 Catherine Pariset            Pierre Clavié Valérie Meeus
 





ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 3

UPDATE OF 2010 SHELF-REGISTRATION DOCUMENT  75

Ratings

Ratings Standard & Poors Moody's FitchRatings

Long-term senior 
unsecured debt

A+ Aa3 AA-

Outlook Stable - Stable

Last rating action 20/05/2011 15/06/2011 23/07/2010

Rating action type
Downgrade of LT and ST ratings (1 notch) and 

outlook change to stable from negative
LT rating on review for 
possible downgrade

Affi rmation

Short-term debt A-1 Prime-1 F1+

Other information regarding the recent evolution of the Bank

Board of Directors’ members at 30 June 2011 

Jean-Paul CHIFFLET, Chairman
Edmond ALPHANDERY
Philippe BRASSAC
Frank E. DANGEARD
Marc DESCHAMPS
Jean-Frédéric DREYFUS
Denis GASQUET
François IMBAULT
Marc KYRIACOU
Jean LE VOURCH
François MACE
Didier MARTIN
Madame Stéphane PALLEZ
Jean PHILIPPE
Jean-Louis ROVEYAZ
François THIBAULT
François VEVERKA
Philippe GESLIN, non-voting Director

RAPPORT D’ACTIVITÉ AU 1ER SEMESTRE 2011 1

ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION
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  PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 
UPDATE OF THE SHELF-REGISTRATION 
DOCUMENT AND FOR AUDITING THE 
ACCOUNTS

  RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

I hereby certify that, to my knowledge and after all due diligence, the information contained in this update to the 2010 shelf-registration 
document is true and accurate and contains no omissions likely to affect the import thereof.

To the best of my knowledge, the condensed interim fi nancial statements for the fi rst half of 2011 have been prepared in accordance 
with the applicable accounting standards and give a true a fair view of the assets and fi nancial position of the company and the group of 
companies included in the consolidation for the fi rst six months of the fi nancial year and of the results for the period then ended, and the 
interim review of business operations on page 5 accurately depicts important events that arose during that period, their effect on the interim 
fi nancial statements and the main related party transactions, as well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties anticipated during 
the second half of the fi nancial year.

I have obtained a letter from the statutory auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit and Ernst & Young et Autres, upon completion of their 
work in which they state that they have verifi ed the information relating to the fi nancial situation and fi nancial statements provided in this 
update of shelf-registration document and read its update as a whole.

Courbevoie, 30 August 2011

The Chief Executive Offi cer of Crédit Agricole CIB
Jean-Yves HOCHER
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  STATUTORY AUDITORS

PRIMARY STATUTORY AUDITORS

Ernst & Young et Autres
Member of the Ernst & Young network

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit
Member of the PricewaterhouseCoopers network

Member of the Versailles regional association
of statutory auditors
represented by: Valérie Meeus

Member of the Versailles regional association
of statutory auditors
represended by: Catherine Pariset and Pierre Clavié

Head offi ce: 
41 Rue Ibry
92576 Neuilly Sur Seine

Head offi ce: 
63 Rue de Villiers
92200 Neuilly Sur Seine

ALTERNATE STATUTORY AUDITORS

Picarle et Associés M. Pierre Coll

Member of the Versailles regional association 
of statutory auditors

Member of the Versailles regional association 
of statutory auditors

Company represented by:
Denis Picarle

Head offi ce:
Faubourg de l’Arche – 11 allée de l’Arche
92400 Courbevoie

63 Rue de Villiers
92208 Neuilly Sur Seine Cedex

LENGTH OF STATUTORY AUDITORS’ MANDATES

Ernst & Young et Autres (until 30 June 2006 known as Barbier 
Frinault et Autres) was appointed Statutory Auditor for six fi nancial 
periods by the shareholders’ meeting of 10 May 2000.

This mandate was renewed for a period of six fi nancial periods at 
the shareholders’ meeting of 16 May 2006.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit was appointed Statutory Auditor 
by the shareholders’ meeting of 30 April 2004, to replace Cabinet 
Alain Laine, which had been appointed at the Meeting of 10 May 
2000 for six fi nancial periods and has since resigned.

This mandate was renewed for a period of six fi nancial periods at 
the shareholders’ meeting of 16 May 2006.

LENGTH OF ALTERNATE AUDITORS’ MANDATES

The shareholders’ meeting of 16 May 2006 appointed Picarle et 
Associes as alternate auditors to Barbier Frinault et Autres (now 
known as Ernst & Young et Autres) for a period of six fi nancial pe-
riods (replacing Mr Peuch Lestrade whose mandate expired at the 
end of the 16 May 2006 shareholders’ meeting).

Pierre Coll was appointed Alternate Auditor to Pricewaterhouse-
Coopers Audit by the shareholders’ meeting of 30 April 2004 for 
the duration of the mandate of his predecessor, Mr Olivier Peron-
net, who had been appointed by the Meeting of 10 May 2000 and 
has since resigned. This mandate was renewed for a period of six 
fi nancial periods at the shareholders’ meeting of 16 May 2006. 
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  CROSS-REFERENCE TABLE
The following table indicates the page references corresponding to the main information headings required by regulation EC 809/2004 
enacting the terms of the « Prospectus » Directive

   Page number Page number
Headings required by regulation EC°809/2004 (Appendix XI) of this of the 
   document shelf-registration  
    document

1. Person responsible 78 252

2. Statutory auditors 79 253

3. Risk factors 15 to 30 94 to 121

    166 to 177

    192

4. Information about the issuer 
 4.1 History and development of the issuer  10 to 12

    128 to 244

5. Business overview
 5.1 Principal activities  13 to 16
 5.1.3 Principal markets  13 to 16 

6. Organisational structure  129
 6.1 Brief description of the Group and the issuer’s position within the Group  2 to 3
 6.2 Dependence relationships within the Group 45 130

7. Recent trends 31 244

8. Profi t forecasts or estimates  N/A

9. Administrative, management and supervisory bodies 
 9.1 Information concerning members of the administrative and management bodies  43 to 49
 9.2 Confl icts of interest in the administrative, management and supervisory bodies  50

10. Major shareholders 61 184

11. Financial information concerning the issuer’s assets and liabilities,
 fi nancial position and profi ts and losses
 11.1 Historical fi nancial information(1)  127 to 241
 11.2 Financial statements  131 to 137
    206 to 209
 11.3 Auditing of historical annual fi nancial statements  202 to 203
    240 to 241
 11.4 Dates of the most recent fi nancial disclosures  127
 11.5 Interim fi nancial information 33 to 73 N/A
 11.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings 30 93 ; 244
 11.7 Signifi cant change in the issuer’s fi nancial or commercial position  244

12. Material contracts  244

13. Third party information and statements by experts and declarations 
 of any interest  N/A

14. Documents on display  245

(1)  In accordance with article 28 of EC regulation 809/2004 and article 212-11 of the AMF’s general regulations, the following are incorporated for reference 
purposes: the Consolidated fi nancial statements for the period ended 31 December 2010, the statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated fi nancial 
statements for the period ended 31 December 2010 and the Group’s management report as presented on pages 77 to 138, 139 to 213 of Crédit Agricole 
CIB’s 2010 shelf-registration document registered by the AMF on 23 March 2011 under number D. 10-0170 and available on the website (www.ca-cib.com).
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